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CORPORATE PROFILE

FACTS
Wolters Kluwer is a leading multinational publisher and
information services company. The Company’s core markets are
in the health, tax, accounting, corporate, financial services, legal
and regulatory, and education sectors. Wolters Kluwer has annual
revenues (2003) of EUR 3 4 billion, employs approximately
19,500 people wotldwide, and maintains operations across
Europe, North America, and Asia Pacific. Wolters Kluwer is
headquartered in Amsterdam, the Netherlands, Its depositary

- receipts are quoted on the Euronext Amsterdam (WKL) and are
included in the AEX and Euronext 100 indices.

LEADING POSITIONS AND BRANDS .

Wolters Kluwer’s market positions are significant, and it is the
number one or two provider of information, software, and
services in over 80% of its markets. Across all of its markets,
Wolters Kluwer is synonymous with strong, enduring brands
such as CCH, the leading provider of tax research and software
products in the United States; OVID, the premier online Health
service provider; and Kluwer, the leading brand for legal, tax,
and regulatory information in the Netherlands.

PROFESSIONALS

The worldwide activities of Wolters Kluwer are aimed

at a select customer group: professionals, such as:

» Accountants, lawyers, fiscal and tax experts

» Doctors, nurses, and other medical specialists

» Banking, insurance, and securities professionals

» Teachers, students, and educational institutions

» Pharmaceutical companies, pharmacists, and hospitals

Wolters Kluwer is deeply committed to providing its customers
with products and services that assist them in making better
decisions. The added value of Wolters Kluwer’s products .
contributes directly to the success of its customers. Relationships
with customers are built on partnership and co-operation.
Wolters Kluwer strives to deliver the right information, at the
right time, and in the right medium.
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THE PROFESSIONAL'S FIRST CHOICE

Wolters Kluwer's vision is to be The Professional’s First Choice.
In all that Wolters Kluwer does, it strives to provide information,
tools, and solutions to help professionals make their most critical
decisions effectively and to improve their productivity. Within
this vision, Wolters Kluwer builds on its powerful brand and
market positions to provide value to its customers through current,
accurate, and expert information, leading edge technology and
software solutions, and superior customer service.

STRATEGY FOR GROWTH AND SUSTAINED
SHAREHOLDER VALUE

Wolters Kluwer is now executing a three-year strategy to
deliver improved value to shareholders, as outlined by its
Chairman, Nancy McKinstry, during the Strategy Update
of October 30, 2003.

The key components of the strategy are to:

» Invest in growth around leading market positions; -

» Reduce costs through structural improvements;

* » Reorganize the business to deliver growth.

Investing to drive revenue growth is Wolters Kluwer’s top
priority within the three-year strategy. Investments in growth
will center on strengthening customer relationships, delivering
end-to-end solutions, and expanding online products and
services.

THE PROFESSIONAL'S FIRST CHOICE



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The year 2003 was a year of transition for Wolters Kluwer,

The Company continued to face challenging market conditions
worldwide. We undertook a thorough analysis of our business
and put in place a series of investment plans to generate future
growth and restructuring initiatives to reduce operating costs
and improve performance. These actions established the foun- ‘
dation for the three-year strategy announced on October 30, °
2003. This strategy will deliver sustained, profitable growth for
Wolters Kluwer and increase value for our shareholders.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Wolters Kluwer had 2003 revenues of EUR 3 436 million and
ordinary EBITA of EUR 610 million, achieving an ordinary EBITA
margin of 18%. This margin was slightly higher than expectations
and was driven by improved revenue performance in the fourth
quarter in North America and additional cost efficiencies in

all Divisions. Cost reductions in 2003 were EUR 79 million, with
approximately one-third from structural improvements.

Organic revenues declined 2%, reflecting challenging market
conditions worldwide, lack of major new legislation, and under:
performance of some operating units. Despite these factors, we
delivered strong revenue growth in Canada, Italy, Central Europe,
and Spain, as well as in Tax Compliance, Teleroute, and Health’s
Professional & Educational unit. A number of key new products
were launched, notably Expere, an integrated compliance
solution for banks, and efacts, an integrated source of drug
interaction information for hospitals and pharmacists, Products
of this type provide the foundation for our future growth.

In 2003 Wolters Kluwer had a modest acquisition program,
designed to complement our portfolio and reflect our new
strategy where acquisitions will be only one part of ‘our overall
growth program. Annualized revenues from acquisitions made
during the year were EUR 59 million. The two largest acquisi-
tions were CEDAM, a leading Italian legal publisher, and
TyMetrix, a provider of legal e-billing services in the U.S.

We strengthened our financial structure significantly in 2003
by reducing net debt 29% from EUR 2.7 billion to EUR 1.9 bil-
lion. Free cash flow remained strong at EUR 393 million, virtual-
ly equal to EUR 400 million realized in 2002, despite the weak -
U.S. dollar. We will make a proposal to the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders to maintain the cash distribution at
EUR 0.55 per share. The foundation for our new strategy is
firmly in place and, despite challenging economic conditions
worldwide, we delivered results by year-end that were in line
with expectations.

OUR VISION AND STRATEGY

Qur vision is to be The Professional’s First Choice by providing
integrated information, tools, and solutions that help professio-
nals make their most critical decisions effectively and to improve
their productivity — be they a clinician relying on our decision
support tools in delivering patient care; an attorney researching
a legal precedent in an important case; an accountant preparing
for an internal audit, or a business professional ensuring compli- -
ance with complex industry regulations.

Qur customers confirm that their practices are undergoing
significant transformation creating a need for solutions that help
them make critical decisions more effectively and tools that
improve their productivity. Innovative, productivity-enhancing
solutions are more important than ever. Our customers will
describe the value of our products to their professions throug-
hout this annual report. Our legacy of proven capabilities in
content development, technology, and customer service,
combined with our world-class products and brands, uniquely
position Wolters Kluwer to support our customers and achieve
this vision.

Our strategy provides a plan for doing so. Specifically, our
three-year strategy is to invest in growth around our leading
positions, reduce costs through structural i 1mprovements and
reorganize to deliver growth.

Invest in Growth: Growing our revenues is our top priority. We
are market leaders in all of our Divisions. These positions are
valuable and sustainable, Most importantly, they provide growth
opportunities and a solid foundation for the future. Our invest-
ments in growth are concentrated on strengthening our customer
relationships, delivering end-to-end solutions, and driving online
products and services to create integrated workflow tools.

Reduce Costs Through Structural Improvements: Our past

approach of rapid acquisition and limited integration now gives

us an opportunity to combine our businesses more effectively to
gain scale benefits and improve operating performance. We are
restructuring our operations to reduce costs and improve our
flexibility. This operational efficiency and agility is particularly
important as we continue to migrate from printed products to
online and software solutions across our organization,

Reorganize to Deliver Growth: A first step in our strategy was
reorganizing our business into five Divisions, which represent
our leading market positions. This new organization structure
became effective January 1, 2004, and provides us with a much
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stronger ability to focus on strengthening relationships with
customers. Our goal in tightly integrating our business units is not
only to improve their market focus, but also to take advantage of
scale efficiencies in product development, technology, and sales
and marketing.

COMMITMENT TO SHAREHOLDER VALUE

We are deeply committed to executing our three-year strategy’
to deliver growth and improve value to our shareholders.
Important to this, Wolters Kluwer is transitioning from a
financial holding company to a streamlined operating company
structure. We have instituted a rigorous and disciplined approach
to managing our business. '

" We have strengthened our senior management team and
shortened the reporting lines between the Divisions and the
Executive Board, with Divisional CEOs now reporting directly
to the Chairman. This supports our operating structure and
improves communication, speeds responsiveness, ard creates a
cohesive management team capable of rapidly implementing
our strategy.

Underpinning all of our decisions is our focus on creating
shareholder value. The principle of Return on Invested Capital
is a critical measure of Wolters Kluwer’s future performance.
This measure is part of six Key Performance Indicators we will

use to guide our decisions and measure our progress against plan,

Remuneration plans for key managers have been changed to
support the strategy and to align our organization and individual
managers with shareholder interests. Adopting a business
strategy and remuneration plans centered on maximizing returns
will result in a more disciplined, effective management of our
assets. As a result, our new short- and long-term compensation
plans focus on the drivers of Return on Invested Capital and
Total Shareholder Return,

As part of our three-year strategy, we have established clear
and transparent financial targets consistent with our shareholders’
interests. Our financial reporting and contact with key sharehol-
ders also has been significantly expanded. Financial transparency
is part of our commitment to good corporate governance.

We will support the principles and practices of the new Dutch .
Corporate Governance Code. '

LOOKING AHEAD

As I begin my first full year as Chairman, I have come to
appreciate, even more deeply than before, the combined efforts of
all those who came before me. I especially want to acknowledge
and thank my predecessor, Rob Pieterse, who retired at the end
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of August 2003, for his efforts on behalf of Wolters Kluwer.

Looking forward, I am confident in our company’s long-term
future. In 2004, our focus will be on executing our three-year
strategy. We will restore top-line revenue growth to Wolters
Kluwer, continue to restructure our cost base and manage our
assets in a highly disciplined manner.

Our new strategy leverages the strong brands and market
positions that comprise Wolters Kluwer. It capitalizes on our
transformation from a traditional publisher to a provider of
information, software, and services. It reinforces and revitalizes
the importance of our products and services in our customers’
day-to-day work. It challenges our employees to create new and
innovative tools for our professional markets. And, it makes our
management more disciplined and more accountable to, and
closely aligned with, delivering value to our shareholders.

I would like to give my sincere thanks to all Wolters Kluwer
staff for their contribution to our 2003 performance and to the
shareholders for their commitment to our company.

-y , -
/’%f/g (s

Nancy McKinstry
Chairman of the Executive Board
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE®

DIVISIONS

CEO

FTEs (AVERAGE)

OPERATIONS

REVENUES 2003

CORPOQORATE STAFF

1 Reported organization structure is per the former Cluster structure that was applicable till
December 31, 2003: Legal, Tax & Business Europe; Legal, Tax & Business North America;
Legal, Tax & Business Asia Pacific; Health; and Education.

As of January 1, 2004, the Company's structure consists of five Divisions: Health;
Corporate & Financial Services; Tax, Accounting & Legal; Legal, Tax & Regulatory Europe;
and Education. Excluding non-core activities.
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KEY FIGURES 20032

2 Ordinary EBITA is defined as operating income before amortization

of intangible fixed assets and exceptional items.

11
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KEY FIGURES

KEY FIGURES?

EUR MILLION (EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE {NDICATED) -

Revenues
Ordinary EBITA
Ordinary EBITA margin (%)
EBITA _
EBITA margin (%)
Ordinary Net Income

. Ordinary EPS (fully diluted) (EUR)
Proposed cash distribution per share (EUR)
Free Cash Flow
Free Cash Flow per share (fully diluted) (EUR)
Cash conversion ratio ‘ : '
Return on Invested Capital (%)®
Average Number of FTEs

 Official Dutch GAAP figures
Operating income
Net income/(loss)
EPS (fully diluted) (EUR)

3 “Ordinary” refers to figures adjusted for exceptional items and, where applicable, amortization
of intangible fixed assets. “Ordinary” figures are non Dutch GAAP compliant financial figures,
but are internally regarded as key financial measures. These figures are presented as additional
information and do not replace the information in the profit and loss account and the cash
flow statement. The term "Ordinary” is not a defined term under Dutch or International GAAP.
Official Dutch GAAP figures represent the information included in the profit and loss account,
as per the “Besluit Modellen Jaarrekening".

In 2003 Wolters Kluwer has made a number of changes in its accountings policies, in
accordance with changes in Dutch Accounting Standards. Accordingly the 2002 figures have
been restated. .

Return on Invested Capital is calculated by dividing the full year Ordinary EBITA after
estimated allocated tax by average invested capital. Average invested capital is defined as
capital employed adjusted for non-operating items, such as deferred tax assets and forward
contracts, exceptional iterns, cash, cumulative goodwill and publishing rights amortization and
goodwill charged to equity. ‘
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LEADING POSITIONS

v A ‘ . Wolters Kluwer
L ST KLUWER \§ ,:; Z s || holds the number one
O?\ f =4 LA} or two position in
:Mw}":{x?hzﬁfnaﬂg -2’ S Pl over 80% of its
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Kk Lo A u CORPORATION COMPANY
CTAdvantage.com
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DFFICE An Aspen Publishers Company
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%
- nelson
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6 This overview represents the new Divisional structure
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WOLTERS KLUWER'S STRATEGY

On October 30, 2003, Wolters Kluwer initiated a new strategy
for the period 2003-2006. This plan will deliver improved

and sustained value to customers and shareholders. The strategy
was developed in collaboration with Divisional management,
customers, and the Executive and Supervisory Boards.

INVEST IN GROWTH AROUND LEADING
MARKET POSITIONS
The Company’s new strategy is focused on pursuing growth by

. investing in leading market positions. As part of this strategy,

EUR 800 million will be invested in growth-related initiatives

" over the next three years. Of these investments, EUR 200 million

is additional to historical levels of spending. These investments
include new product development, key product enhancements,
online migration, and market expansion.

Wolters Kluwer will seek growth opportunities, created by
newly emerging customer needs and technologies, to build
valuable products and services. Wolters Kluwer is investing in
all its Divisions, with the levels of investments reflecting its
expectations for growth.

REDUCE COSTS THROUGH STRUCTURAL IMPROVEMENTS
Funding this growth requires restructuring of operations to
reduce costs, which must be achieved if Wolters Kluwer is to
effectively compete in a global marketplace. The goal is to
reduce costs by EUR 240 million over the next three years
through structural improvements. Plans have been developed by
looking at the business in its entirety rather than at the operating
unit level. As such, the focus of the Company’s restructuring
efforts is largely in four areas:

» Create shared services in Finance, Human Resources
and selective Technology functions to increase scale and
enable more effective investments in systems;

» Consolidate real estate; .

» Rationalize back office functions to reduce the cost base
and improve the Company’s ability to execute the business
more quickly and effectively;

B Standardize and consolidate technology platforms, combine
data centers and increase use of offshore development and
IT outsourcing,

As part of the cost reductions, a total of 1,600 FTEs
(approximately 8 percent of the workforce) will be reduced
across the global organization by 2006. These are difficult but

unavoidable measures given today's business climate. Wolters
Kluwer will execute this plan in line with good business
practices and local social regulations and with sensitivity to
the needs of its employees.

These restructuring initiatives will reduce costs and simplify
how Wolters Kluwer manages its businesses, enabling it to be

"' more responsive to customer and market dynamics.

REORGANIZE TO DELIVER GROWTH

Effective January 1, 2004 Wolters Kluwer reorganized its opera-
tions into five Divisions focused on leading markets. These
Divisions are: Health; Corporate & Financial Services; Tax,
Accounting & Legal; Legal, Tax & Regulatory Europe; and
Education. These Divisions focus on distinct customer segments.
The Divisions will drive integration between the business units,
simplify the business and provide day-to-day management. By
integrating the businesses, Wolters Kluwer can achieve scale
economies, but most importantly, get closer to its customers.

2003 AMILESTONES

GROWTH INITIATIVES

Investment in building new products is a key part of Wolters
Kluwer’s growth program. The investments made in 2003 were
targeted at products that combine content with software and
services to provide customer with solutions that assist them in
their daily work and decision-making.

Investment in online growth and migration is central to the
Wolters Kluwer strategy. Revenues from electronic products
have grown from 22% of sales in 2000 to 31% in 2003.

While customers prefer to use certain reference and text-
books in print, new electronic products enable them to deliver
superior performance in their professions, supporting changes
in medicine, law, compliance and education. In addition to
delivering organic growth, solutions that become integrated
within customer workflows deliver higher value and improved
renewal rates for the Company. When customers migrate from
print to online and software products, they have the ability to
link to Wolters Kluwer products in new and meaningful ways.
Information can be provided in detail for research purposes, or
in summary form for quick answers. The delivery platform is
flexible: desktop, point of care or personal digital assistant, and
can be provided based on individual customer preference.

Investments in online migration also provide Wolters Kluwer
with an opportunity to consolidate and streamline legacy
editorial and production systems. This gives Wolters Kluwer the
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ability to cost effectively meet the needs of its customer, regard-
less of format. Therefore, online growth and migration remains a
key priority within each of the Divisions.

In 2003, good progress was made with the European
Internet Platform (EIP) project that consists of adding new
functionalities to the content in the various European countries’
and migrating that content to the common electronic platform.
The EIP is the foundation for the creation of a single, global
platform for Wolters Kluwer's legal, tax and accounting
businesses. In addition, the Company has earmarked significant
investment to restructure North America to order to stimulate
organic growth, This effort, entitled Project One, will focus on
expanding market positions in banking, securities and insurance
through strong investments in new products, developing the
next generation online platform, and creating shared services
for key functions.

RESTRUCTURING AND BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT PLANS
Cost restructuring began in 2003 across all Divisions. The total
cost savings were EUR 79 million compared with original
expectations of EUR 70 million. Of this, approximately
one-third is structural and the balance is one time savings
associated with reductions in such areas as travel expenses,
profit sharing and employee bonuses. Included in these savings
was the organic decrease of 521 FTEs companywide.

Major restructuring programs were accomplished in Aspen
Publishing and Belgium. At Aspen, the business has stabilized
and order management system issues resolved. Aspen’s revenues
were reduced as a result of deliberate management action to
focus the product line on the legal market, divest non-core
product lines and eliminate aggressive marketing practices that
had led to high preduct returns. These actions have positioned
Aspen for improved performance in 2004.

In Belgium, restructuring efforts in 2003 focused on stream-
lining the organization and simplifying the product line. As a
result, improvements were made by year-end to stabilize revenue
growth and increase profitability. Execution of the restructuring
plan will continue in 2004 and will be focused on implementing
new systems in order to improve back office efficiencies.

Restructuring plans are also underway in the United Kingdom
and the Netherlands. In the United Kingdom, implementation
is focused on the installation of a common financial and back
office system, more flexible product offerings and improved
sales and marketing. This plan was started in late 2003 and will
continue throughout 2004. Similar restructuring plans will be
implemented in the Netherlands in 2004.
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2004 EXPECTATIONS AND LONG-TERM OUTLOOK

In 2004 Wolters Kluwer will focus on restoring top-line revenue
growth. It will also be a year of restructuring the cost base and
investment in the future. As a result, ordinary EBITA margins
will be reduced to 14-15%. From 2007 onwards, the Company
expects sustained revenue growth of 3-4%, improved ordinary
EBITA margins of 19-20%, and Return on Invested Capital at
or above the after-tax weighted cost of capital (WACC) of 8%.
To meet these objectives, the Company must achieve its targeted
structural cost savings, invest in winning product development,
and improve marketing and sales. Wolters Kluwer will also take

. -every opportunity to further strengthen its financial structure.

The Executive Board and the senior management team are
united in their commitment to the new strategy. The team is
confident of the direction the Company is taking and implemen-
tation of the new strategy is tracking according to plan.

Forward-Looking Statements
This annual report contains forward-looking statements.
These statements may be identified by words such as "expect”,
"should", "could", "shall", and similar expressions. These
statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, and actual
results and events could differ materially from what is
expected presently. Factors leading thereto may include without
limitations general economic conditions, conditions in
the markets in which Wolters Kluwer is engaged, bebavior of
customers, suppliers and competitors, technological develop-
ments, as well as legal and regulatory rules affecting Wolters
Kluwer's businesses.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Activities in the realm of corporate social responsibility or
sustainable entrepreneurship are not new to Wolters Kluwer.
As a company, Wolters Kluwer has always been conscious of

its responsibility to be a good corporate citizen in its interaction

with its employees, customers, shareholders and the commu-
nities and countries in which it is active. Historically, many of
the activities the Company has been involved in were deter-
mined locally and in a manner appropriate to individual customs
and markets. '

Consistent with the newly announced strategy of becoming
a more integrated organization, appropriate values for the

_ corporation were adopted. In 2003, Wolters Kluwer defined its

values as: customer focus, innovation, accoﬁntabiliry, integrity
and value creation. Implementation of these values across the
entire organization will start in 2004. As part of this, the
Company is working on a code of conduct for its employees.
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Wolters Kluwer is prepared to challenge itself to find a code
that is useful and usable for employees, which will then be
implemented in the organization. ‘ ‘

Communication with employees was a key focus in 2003 and
will continue in 2004. Executing Wolters Kluwer’s new strategy
requires the full commitment of its employees. Good communi-
cation is essential to this effort. Employees have responded well
to this increased focus on creating an open dialogue.

Wolters Kluwer is conscious of the need to give back to the
communities that it serves. With that in mind, there have been
a number of initiatives on a local level. Examples include:
providing free access to Journals@QOvid during the outbreak
of SARS (see page 35) and partnering with KPN, a multinational

" telecom company, to offer free access to Internet-modules of

educational material for higher education.

Wolters Kluwer intends to publish a sustainable entrepre-
neurship report over the year 2004. The guidelines of the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) will be used for determining ‘
the structure and content of the report. This report will allow
Wolters Kluwer’s stakeholders to judge its progress.

FINANCIAL DEVELOPARENTS IN 2003

The year 2003 can be characterized as a year of change for-
Wolters Kluwer. The worldwide economic slowdown had a

significant impact on the revenues and profit of the Company
and many initiatives were undertaken to address this.

CLOSER TO IFRS
As a result of the harmonization of Dutch GAAP to
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), significant

" steps have been taken to bring accounting principles closer to
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) that

will become effective in 2005 (see also Note 1 of the Financial
Statements). Wolters Kluwer has adopted Dutch accounting
guidelines R} 270 on the profit and loss account, which contains

..detailed requirements for revenue recognition, and RJ 271 on

employee benefits, which contains a new methodology for cal-
culating pension costs and liabilities. It also has adopted RJ 160,
which relates to post balance sheet events. In line with this
reguladon, the declaration of dividend (or cash distribution) is
now considered as a post balance sheet event, and is therefore
no longer included under current liabilities. Currently, the most
important remaining differences between Wolters Kluwer’s
Financial Statements and IFRS relate to intangible fixed assets
(amortization of goodwill), share-based compensation, and
financial instruments. More information on these accounting
changes and the remaining differences are included in the Notes
to the Financial Statements.

The overall impact of RJ 270, R] 271 and R] 160 is shown in
the following table:

IN MILLIONS OF EUROS

RJ 270 Profit and loss account
RJ 271 Employee benefits
RJ 160 Post balance sheets events

“Impict on _
- equity

-Jmpacton - '
net income

TOTAL
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EUR MILLION
(EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE INDICATED)

Revenues

Ordinary EBITA

Ordinary EBITA margin (%)

EBITA

EBITA Margin (%)

Ordinary Net Income

Ordinary EPS (fully diluted) (EUR)
Return on Invested Capital (%)-.

Official Dutch GAAP figures
Operating income

Net income

EPS (fully diluted) (EUR)

Revenues in 2003 were affected strongly by currency movements
and decreased by 13% to EUR 3,436 million. The decline was
4% in constant currencies.

Organic revenues declined 2%, reflecting challenging market
conditions worldwide, lack of major new legislation, and undet-
performance of some operating units. Revenues declined mainly
at Aspen, the Netherlands and the United Kingdom. Despite
these factors, the Company experienced strong growth in
Canada, Italy, Central Europe and Spain, as well as in Tax
Compliance, Teleroute and Health’s Professional & Educational
unit. Acquisitions contributed 2% to revenue growth, while
2002 divestments (main.ones being Kluwer Academic Publishers
and Bohn Stafleu van Loghum) reduced revenues by 4%.

The impact of the decline in revenues on profitability was
controlled with an aggressive cost reduction program that was
implemented early in the year. This program saved EUR 79 mil-
lion in 2003. About one-third of this amount is structural. The
remaining cost savings were associated with one-time reductions
of bonuses, travel, profit sharing, and other personnel-related
expenses. Expenditures on product development were increased
during the year and these expenditures were expensed as incurred.
Ordinary EBITA at constant currencies decreased by 10%. As a
result of adverse currency movements, ordinary EBITA declined
20% from EUR 763 million to EUR 610 million. The ordinary
EBITA margin decreased to 18%.

In 2003, a EUR 96 million exceptional restructuring expense
was incurred for the restructuring program that was implemented
in line with the strategic announcements made in October of
2003. Taking all these items into account, the EBITA margin

in 2003 was 15% compared to 19% in the prior year.

The profit benchmark defined as “ordinary net income befo-
re amortization of intangible fixed assets and exceptional items”,
declined from EUR 442 million in 2002 to EUR 349 million
{approximately -8% in constant currencies, -21% in euros) as a
result of the decline of ordinary EBITA, offset in part by lower
financing and tax charges. *

Due to lower ordinary net income and the dilutive effects of
stock dividends and options, the fully diluted earnings per share,
based on the weighted average number of shares was EUR 1.18
compared to EUR 1.50 in 2002.

An essential part of the strategy is to generate returns on
invested capital that first meet and then exceed the Company’s
weighted average cost of capita] (WACC). The cost of capital
after tax is approximately 8%. The Return on Invested Capital
dedclined to 7% in 2003 (2002: 8%), due to the decline of ordi-
nary EBITA.

Operating income in 2003 decreased to EUR 114 million, as
compared to EUR 669 million in 2002, mainly as a result of the
EUR 96 million exceptional restructuring expense incurred,
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lower book gains on divestments (2003: EUR 23 million versus
2002: EUR 321 million) and the decrease of ordinary EBITA.

Net income was EUR -69 million in 2003, compared to EUR
382 million in 2002, when it included the positive impact of
book gains on divestments of EUR 321 million (after tax EUR
307 million).

EXCEPTIONAL RESTRUCTURING EXPENSE
One of the key elements in the new strategy is a restructuring
program that aims to reduce costs through structural improve-
ments. This program requires expenditures of around EUR 215 -
million during the next three years to achieve a total of EUR 240
million in savings across all Divisions. Approximately EUR 150
million of these expenditures will be classified as an exceptional
restructuring expense, related to the reduction of staff and to
onerous contracts mainly resulting from real estate consolidation.
The 2003 exceptional charge of EUR 96 million fully relates
to first phase of the restructuring initiatives as announced during
the Strategy Update of October 30, 2003. By the end of 2003, the
Company achieved an organic decrease of 521 FTEs companywide.

ACQUISITIONS
In 2003, Wolters Kluwer had a modest acquisition program. The
focus was to complement its portfolio and strengthen leading
positions. As a result, in 2003, eight companies were acquired
for a total consideration of EUR 115 million, including deferred
payments. These acquisitions generate annualized revenues of
EUR 59 million. Two major acquisitions were CEDAM, a leading
Italian legal publishing house in which Wolters Kluwer acquired
a33% stake in 2003, and TyMetrix, a provider of legal e-billing
and matters management services in the United States, Other
acquisitions were Manual Industrial Property, Digital Spirit,
Atchley, and Stanford Skolar MD. In 2003, acquisitions contri-
buted 2% to revenue growth and 1% to ordinary EBITA.
Acquisitions will continue to play a role in growth plans, but
will be less critical than in the past. Wolters Kluwer will conti-
nue to seek opportunities to strengthen its leading market posi-
tions at attractive prices. In the future, the Company will pursue
acquisitions selectively and only if they offer a good return on
invested capital and added value in terms of organic growth
prospects, strategic positioning, market position, broader
product offerings, and/or some definable competitive edge.

RESULTS ON DIVESTMENTS
The sale of non-core businesses continued in 2003 with the
divestment of four companies: ISBW, the professional training
assets of Hawksmere, the education assets of Aspen Publishers,
and the Public Law assets of Kluwer Law International.
Together with the sale of Kiuwer Academic and Bohn Stafleu
Van Loghum in 2002, the sale of non-core activities has largely
been completed. The intended divestment of ten Hagen & Stam
did not take place in 2003.

The pre-tax book profit on the divestments realized in 2003
amounted to EUR 23 million, EUR 20 million after tax.

TAX CHARGE

As a result of lower pre tax income, the tax charge decreased
from EUR 136 million in 2002 to EUR 64 million in 2003. The
tax effects under the Dutch group financing regime (CFA regime)

were less during the year due to lower interest rates and a lower
U.S. dollar rate.

CASH. FLOW

EUR MILLION (EXCEPT AS .

OTHERWISE INDICATED) 2002 % Change :
Restated | .

Cash Flow from Operations 842 1 .

Free Cash Flow 400 4

Free Cash Flow per share 136

(fully diluted) (EUR) D S

Cash Conversion ratio 091 |

The lower ordinary EBITA in 2003 was offset in part by a posi-
tive improvement of working capital. Despite adverse currency
movements, cash flow from operations of EUR 756 million only
declined 10%, compared to the decline of ordinary EBITA of
20%. Movements in working capital were positive EUR 34
million (2002: negative EUR 39 million). The most important
factors in this development were lower accounts receivable
{particularly in LTB Europe) and lower stocks/inventories
(particularly in LTB North America).

Free cash flow provides the funds to invest in business for
future growth, acquire companies, pay dividends to sharehol-
ders, pay down debt, and repurchase shares. Free cash flow was
EUR 393 million in 2003 and was in line with 2002 (EUR 400
million), despite the weak U.S. dollar, due to lower capital
expenditures in 2003 compared to 2002 (EUR 55 million) and
lower appropriations of acquisition provisions (EUR 13 million).
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This is mainly due to reduced investment in back office systems,
the completlon of some major IT projects in the United States
and Europe, and a smaller acquisition program. :

The cash conversion ratio” measures the cash generating ablh
ty of the businesses, regardless of tax and financing obligations:
In 2003, the cash conversion ratio improved significantly to 1.09
(2002: 0.91) as a result of positive working capital development
and reduced capital expenditures.

BALANCE SHEET

EUR MILLION

Fixed assets
Working Capital
Shareholders' equity

Net interest bearing debt

Fixed assets decreased as a result of adverse currency move-
ments and amortization and impairments applied to goodwill
and publishing rights.

Working capital decreased as a result of the receipt of the pro-
ceeds from the sale of Kluwer Academic Publishers early in
2003, which were partly used to reduce net debt.

Shareholders’ equity declined to EUR 861 million, as a result
of adverse currency movements, the cash dividend paid in 2003
and the loss incurred in 2003 of EUR 69 million.

Wolters Kluwer made successful efforts to reduce its debt
level in 2003 and to strengthen its balance sheet to support the
new strategy. These efforts resulted in a decrease in (gross) debt
from EUR 3.1 billion (2002) to EUR 2.6 billion. Taking into
account the cash and cash equivalent balances, the net interest-
bearing debt position decreased from EUR 2.7 billion (2002)
to EUR 1.9 billion. -

To efficiently utilize surplus cash, Wolters Kluwer announced
a series of capital market transactions on October 30, 2003, in
which public offers were made for two of the senior bond issues
and for the convertible bonds.

7 Cash conversion ratio (CAR) is defined as the cash flow
from operations less net expenditure on fixed assets
divided by ordinary EBITA
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The purpose of the public offers was to utilize cash efficiently

. and to prudently reduce debt maturing in 2005 and 2006.

Wolters Kluwer repurchased EUR 1,126 million of its
outstanding bonds:

$ EUR 380 million of the 6.125% bonds due 2005;
» EUR 536 million of the 5.50% bonds due 2006;

# EUR 210 million of the 1.00% convertible bonds due 2006.

Following this, the Company raised longer-term funding and
extended its maturity profile by issuing a new unsubordinated
bond due 2014 with a nominal value of EUR 700 million. The
coupon on the bonds is 5.125% with an issue price of 99.618%.
The proceeds from this bond issue were used to partly refinance
the tender offer and for general corporate purposes.

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Goodwill — the difference between the cost of acquisitions and
the fair market value of the acquired identifiable assets less liabi-
lities — decreased relative to 2002. The most important reasons
were negative currency movements and amortization, including
impairments. In 2003, Wolters Kluwer again performed impait-
ment tests on the book values of goodwill and publishing rights.
The aim of these tests is to assess whether the book value of the
acquisitions relating to intangible fixed assets do justice to the
current value, which is determined by calculating the present
value of the future cash flows (estimated by management). If the
current value is lower than the book value, full impairment is
applied in the profit and loss account. In 2003, an amount of
EUR155 million was charged to the profit and loss account
(2002: EUR 87 million). These impairments mainly took place
at parts of LTB North America and LTB Europe.

DIVIDEND (CASH OR STOCK DISTRIBUTION)

During the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on April 21,
2004, Wolters Kluwer will propose a distribution from reserves
of EUR 0.55 per share. This corresponds with the dividend
declared for 2002. In line with previous years, and indicating a
strong belief in the future of the Company, Wolters Kluwer pro-
poses to allow its shareholders to choose between a distribution
in the form of cash or stock. After acceptance of the proposal by
the General Meeting of Shareholders, the shareholders will be

~ asked to make their choice known. The stog:k dividend ratio will

be set on April 29, 2004 (after the close of trading). The cash
distribution will be payable as of May 4, 2004.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Wolters Kiuwer seeks to be as open as possible with its
investors and is committed to a high degree of transparency in
its financial reporting. In furtherance of that goal, the Company
reported first- and third-quarter trading updates for the first
time in 2003. The number of road shows and cne-on-one
meetings with investors was doubled. Investor Relations has
developed a comprehensive program for communicating with
investors. The purpose is to enable investors to become better
acquainted with Wolters Kluwer and its management and to
maintain a long-term relationship of trust. Activities include:

» A full presentation by management, via webcast, of
half-year and full-year results;

» Regular meetings with potential and existing shareholders
and sell-side analysts covering the Company;,

» Conference calls providing first- and third-quarter trading

and year-end results; ‘

» In depth Division days where Divisional management
provides a more comprehensive review of their business
and products; and v

» Information is provided via the Investor Relations section of
www.wolterskluwer.com, which includes archived copies of
presentations and webcasts delivered throughout the year.

RISK

RISK PROFILE

As a global information business Wolters Kluwer is faced with

various risks. These risks include, among others: ‘

B Business risks, such as the continued demand for products
by customers, copyright infringements and the rapidly
changing IT environment;

# Financial risks, such as currency, interest rate fluctuations, - '
liquidity and credit risk.

BUSINESS RISKS

Wolters Kluwer mitigates these risks by having a solid strategy
in place and hiring the best resources available. The strategy is
focused on serving professionals in information-intensive sectors
on a subscription basis. Wolters Kluwer products and services
are crucial to these professionals. This means that the Company
caters to relatively stable markets with a strong and constant
need for up-to-date information, particularly in the rapidly evolving
fields of regulation and compliance (tax, fiscal, legal), learning

{education) and health (medical).

Wolters Kluwer’s portfolio consists of information, software
and services with a high added value - often protected by copy-
right or patent. This portfolio is balanced in terms of both
markets and geography. As part of the Strategy Update, the
Company is in the process of implementing a centralized ICT

" governance model. As much as possible, use is made of shared

content and delivery platforms and common back office systems.
This enables the Company to build on economies of scale across
the organization. :

FINANCIAL RISKS

The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risks, including
currency, interest rate, liquidity and credit risk. Fluctuations in
exchange and interest rates may affect Wolters Kluwer's reported
results. It is the Company’s goal to mitigate the effects of
exchange rate and interest rate movements on net income, equity
and cash flow. Whenever possible, the Company tries to establish
this by creating natural hedges, i.e. income and expenses in

the same currency and by matching assets and liabilities. When
natural hedges are not present, Wolters Kluwer tries to realize
the same effect with the aid of financial instruments. For this
purpose, hedging ranges have been identified and strict policies
and governance are in place.

The Company only purchases or holds financial instruments
for hedging purposes, and strict authorization procedures are in
place for their application, though these instruments would not
always qualify for hedge accounting as defined in TFRS 39.

For additional disclosure about financial risks, please refer to
Note 18 of the Financial Statements.

CURRENCY RISK
The main currency risks identified by Wolters Kluwer are currency
transaction risk and currency translation risk.

The transaction risk exposure within the individual Wolters
Kluwer entities is considered to be limited. The prices that
Wolters Kluwer charges its customers for products and services
are mainly denominated in the customer’s local currency. Given
the nature of the business, almost all related costs are also incurred
in that local currency. Thus, financial instruments to hedge
transaction risks are not frequently used.

The translation risk of the Company is hedged in order to
limir the impact of volatile exchange rates on equity. Currently,
26% of the net investment® is hedged in the United States.
Wherever possible, the Company will strive to create natural
hedges. If this is not possible, financial instruments will be used
to reach predetermined targets.
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Interest charges have (through the use of derivative instruments)
to a large extent been swapped into U.S. dollar charges. Of all
interest charges, approximately 38% is payable in U.S. dollars.
The Company strives to have U.S. dollar denominated interest
charges, in line with EBITA.

INTEREST RATE RISK
The Company seeks to protect results and cash flow from interest

rate movements, either by arranging fixed rate funding, or variable, g

through the use of derivative instruments (Interest Rate Swaps).
Of the total interest portfolio, approximately 24 % is variable

rate, and 76% fixed rate. Efforts will be made to achieve a ratio
of 67-75% at fixed interest rate and 33-25% floating interest rate.

LIQUIDITY RISK
In order to reduce liquidity risk, Wolters Kluwer has established
the following minimum requirements: ‘
» Repayment of long-term debt should be spread
evenly over time;
» Acquire funding at least one year in advance of
maturing long-term debt;
» Minimum headroom (sum of unused committed credit '
facilities and cash and cash equivalents) of EUR 500 million.

The headroom per year-end 2003 amounted to approximately
EUR 0.9 billien.

CREDIT RISK

It is Wolters Kluwer’s policy to conclude financial transactions,
where possible, under ISDA (International Swap Dealers
Assaciation) master agreements. Cash is invested and financial
transactions are concluded only with financial institutions with
strong credit ratings. Furthermore credit limits per counter party
are in place. v

INTERNAL CONTROL

As a global company, internal control processes are an integral
part of operations. The processes have been designed to provide
assurance that strategic objectives are met and to ensure the
reliability of financial reporting.

8 Net investment is defined as the total of the equity investment
in and long-term receivables from our U.S. holding company.
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The Company employs various mechanisms to safeguard that an
adequate internal control system is maintained:

B A standard annual planning and reporting cycle, consisting
of the annual Business Development Plan (three-year strategic
plan) on a Divisional and operating entity level, the annual bud-
get, quarterly forecasts and monthly financial reporting;

» ‘Standard financial and non-financial procedures and policies.

The Company has an operational auditor and a team of internal
auditors to ensure compliance with its policies and procedures
and detect and address internal control issues.

In the beginning of 2003 an extensive Risk Assessment Project
was started to further improve the internal control framework.
The goals of this project are to improve the effectiveness and
efficiency of the operations and, to ensure the reliability of
financial information and compliance with laws and regulations.
The Audit Committee and the external auditor are closely involved
in monitoring this process.
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STRONG CUSTOMER APPROACH

ABOUT IP50A

Ipsoa specializes in tax,
legal, business and employ-
ment law publications,
developing smart solutions
and integrated software-
content services for their
professional markets.

With a strong, customer-
oriented approach, Ipsoa is
the one stop solution to
satisfy all the information
needs of their professional

customers.

For more information, see

www.ipsoa.it
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IL\V)J Wolter;skluwer '»

Legal, Tax & Business Europe :
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*The 2002 figures have
been restated in accordance
with the 2003 organizational
structure.

LEGAL, TAX & BUSINESS
EUROPE T

lawyers » tax and fiscal
experts « accountants

« human resources and
transport professionals
» corporations and
government agencies

the Netherlands . France «
United Kingdom . Germany
« Belgium « Spain « italy -
Scandinavia « Austria » Central
Europe - Russia - Telefoute

8,009 (average FTEs)

1,279 {(EUR million)

www.kluwer.nl

www lamy.fr
www.ipsoa.it
www.croner.co.uk
www. teleroute.com
www.laley.net
www.lex.pl
www.luchterhand.de
www kluwer.be
wWww.nj.se
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ACCESS TO KNOWLEDGE @ CORPORATE & FINANCIAL SERVICES

NAME BILL NIGH

POSITION SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT

COMPANY SYNOVUS FINANCIAL CORP

INDUSTRY FINANCIAL SERVICES

LOCATION COLUMBUS, GEORGIA, THE UNITED STATES

WOLTERS KLUWER PRODUCT BANKERS SYSTEMS, INC. ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS

CUSTOMER SINCE 1997
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MAKING COMPLIANCE CONVENIENT

THE PROFESSIONAL'S FIRST CHOICE

ABOUT BANKERS SYSTEMS

Bankers Systems, Inc., is a
leading provider of
compliance information,
tools, and technology
focused on helping financial
services organizations better
manage their compliance
requirements and work
flows. Bankers Systems’
lending, deposit, customer
identification, and anti-
money laundering solutions
help document transactions,
integrate data efficiently
across systems and locations,
introduce new products to
market more quickly, and

manage risk.

For more information, see

wwuw.bankerssystems.com




ILMAI WoltersKluwer

Legal, Tax & Business North America
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ULTEMATE PRODUCTIVITY

ABOUT PROSYSTEM FX

ProSysreM_
QEFICE ;5

The ProSystem fx Office is
an award-winning suite of
integrated software and
workflow tools for tax and
accounting professionals.
These state-of-the-art
products deliver unparalleled
features and functionality
that enhance firm produc-
tivity and efficiency while
also helping organizations
move toward a paperless
environment.
The ProSystem fx Office
also offers products and
services that help pave the
way for firms to grow

through expanded services.

For more information, see

tax.cchgroup.com
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*The 2002 figures have
been restated in accordance
with the 2003 organizational
structure.

LEGAL, TAX & BUSINESS
ASIA PACIFIC

lawyers and accountants

- professionals in the fields
of finance « compliance

« financial planning and
human resources

« CCH Australia

+ CCH Asia

- CCH New Zealand
+ CCH japan

621 (average FTEs)

67 (EUR miltion)

www.cch.com.sg
www.cch.com.au
www.cch.co.nz
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IN MILLIONS DF ‘EUROS .
except-as otherwis

*The 2002 figures have
! been restated in accordance
with the 2003 organizational
structure,

0 . / 8 > HEALTH

GOALS FOR 2004

» medical specialists -
clinicians - physicians »
nurses - hospitals » managed
care organizations « schools
« universities/corporate
librarians . scientists -
pharmaceutical companies
- pharmacists and students

A

¢ Mo
o
, la*,f?,g%

¢ Clinical Tools

» Medica! Research-

+ Pharma Solutions

» Professional & Education

2,351 (average FTEs)

663 (EUR million)

www.wihealth.com
www.drugfacts.com
www.clineguide.com
www.ovid.com
www.lww.com
www.adis.com
www.medispan.com
www.skolar.com
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UTA VETTER

NAME

DIRECTOR OF TRAINING SOLUTIONS AND MEDIA CONCEPTS

POSITION

AMADEUS GERMANY GmbH

COMPANY

TRAVEL SERVICES

INDUSTRY

GERMANY

v

BAD HOMBURG

LOCATION

-LEARNING SOLUTIONS

DIGITAL SPIRIT E

WOLTERS KLUWER PROD

1936

CUSTOMER SINCE
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OPTIMAL E-LEARNING

ABOUT DIGITAL SPIRIT

\dlgtt_agsglrlt/
add new knowledge

Knowledge is the most
valuable capital a company
can possess. To use this
capital optimally is the
greatest challenge for the
future. This is the core
competence of Digital Spirit,
a prominent company in the
business of e-learning.
With the perfect interaction
of all knowledge components,
Digital Spirit generates new
knowledge by structuring,
connecting and refining

knowledge.

For more information, see

www.digital-spirit.de
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*The 2002 figures have
been restated in accordance
with the 2003 organizational
structure.

EDUCATION

students - teachers and
schools in primary -
secondary and higher
education » after-school
and vocational markets

- Wolters-Noordhoff
» Liber

« Nelson Thornes

- Bildungsverlag EINS
- Miiszaki '

- Wolters Plantyn
«Jugend & Volk

1,481 (average FTEs)

302 (EUR miltion)

www.wolters.nl
www.bv-1.de
www.liber.se
www.nelsonthornes.com
www.wkeonline.com
www.woltersplantyn.be
www.muszakikiado.hu
www jugendvolk.at

e
, g2
{ £3
nelson g
thornes -

MOORHOUSE BLACK

Bildungsverlag

EINS
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NON-CORE

EUR MILLION (EXCEPT AS
OTHERWISE INDICATED)

Revenues
Ordinary EBITA
. Ordinary EBITA margin (%)
CAPEX
FTEs (average)

Revenues of the non-core activities fell from EUR 303 million
{2002) to EUR 100 million mainly as a result of the divestments
of Kluwer Academic Publishers and Bohn Stafleu Van Loghum
in 2002. '

The sale of non-core activities continued in 2003. The main
divestitures were ISBW in the Netherlands, and Hawksmere in
the United Kingdom, both active in the professional training
market, the educational assets of Aspen Publishers and the
public law assets of Kluwer Law International. As from 2004,
Wolters Kluwer will no longer account separately for non-core
activities. These activities will be included in the financial results
of the relevant Divisions.

CORPORATE

EUR MILLION (EXCEPT AS
OTHERWISE INDICATED)

Ordinary EBITA
CAPEX
FTEs (average)

Corporate costs were EUR 43 million (2002: EUR 37 million).
The number of FTEs was reduced from 92 (in 2002) to 89.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The three-year strategy, announced in October 2003, represents
a fundamental change for Wolters Kluwer. As Wolters Kluwer
moves from a financial holding company to a company with a
strong strategic and operational focus, the role of Human
Resources will change. In 2003, Human Resources focused on
the development and delivery of programs that support the
new organization and its strategic goals.

ORGANIZATION )
- Many changes to the internal organization were made in 2003 to
reflect the increased management responsibilities of Divisional
units and Corporate Office and to provide a more integrated
customer focus. The prior Cluster structure was eliminated and
five Divisions were created to focus on key markets. To increase
accountability and shorten reporting lines, the portfolio model of
the Executive Board was eliminated and the CEQs of the five

Divisions report directly to the Chairman of the Executive Board.
 In 2003, a new department, Corporate Strategic
Development, was organized to assist in the development and
implementation of corporate and business unit strategy. Led by a
Senior Vice President, the department’s role is to provide support
and advice to the Executive Board and Divisions, as well as to
oversee the implementation and execution of the restructuring
projects that have been identified as part of the October strategic
initiative.

Wolters Kluwer also strengthened its management team with

a number of new appointments and reorganized the technology
organization to better support system integration and leverage

global scale.

STAFF REDUCTIONS

As part of the new strategy, reduction of 1,600 FTEs during the
period from 2003 through 2006 is planned. To ensure that this
target is met, rigorous control of hiring and monitoring of ‘
personnel costs was implemented. Cost reductions in 2003 led
to an organic decrease of 521 FTEs companywide.

MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAMS ‘
Wolters Kluwer’s new strategy is focused on long-term growth
and on maximizing Total Shareholder Return. The stock option
scheme, in place for many years for select senior managers, has
been eliminated and replaced with a new long-term compensation
plan. The new plan has been implemented for senior managers
to better align the organization with the goals, which result in
improved shareholder value. The new incentive scheme is based

ANNUAL REPORT 2003

on using performance against the drivers of Return on Invested
Capital and Total Sharebolder Return as targets of performance,

This framework aligns management goals, performance measures,

and rewards with shareholder interests.

A modified short-term incentive scheme has replaced the
prior bonus scheme. Objectives for the short-term scheme are
financial criteria that have been determined to be value creating
drivers for the Company, such as revenue growth and free cash
flow.

Human Resources is also responsible for providing an
environment that is beneficial to the employees of Wolters
Kluwer and to developing, recruiting, and retaining talen:t in
the organization.

EUROPEAN WORKS COUNCIL

The European Works Council met twice with the Executive
Board and members of senior management in 2003. Discussions
were focused on Wolters Kluwer’s Strategy Update and the busi-
ness developments in the LTB Europe and Education. Wolters
Kluwer’s commitment to the Works Council is strong and con-

“sistent with the Company’s overall Human Resource’s philosophy.

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING: WOLTERS
KLUWER UNIVERSITY (WKU)

Consistent with the strategy of creating tailor made learning
solutions for managers, in 2003, WKU provided customized
residential programs and E-learning tools to support Wolters
Kluwer's targets for change. Residential programs include an
affiliation with Ashridge University (the United Kingdom),
Nyenrode University {the Netherlands) and Kellogg School
of Business, Northwestern University (the United States), for
courses in general management development and new product
development. E-Learning continues to gain favor in the
organization, with a substantial base of active students. _

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

In 2003, Wolters Kluwer enhanced and improved its communi-
cations with the media and its employees. The number of inter-
views with European media increased significantly, resulting in a
deeper and more insightful understanding of the Company and
its newly announced strategy. In the United States, a media
program was initiated to enhance awareness of Wolters Kluwer,
as an international company with a significant North American
presence.

As with external media, great strides were made in 2003 in
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internal communications. Clear and effective communication
with employees is critical to the success of the newly announced
strategy. This is particularly important in light of the significant
restructuring and investment initiatives throughout the
Company. As a result, new communications initiatives were a
top priority for 2003 and will continue to be further implemented
in 2004. .

Initiatives for communicating with employees included:
» An intensive email communication program with all employees;
> Greater use of the worldwide intranet and webcasts;
W Town Hall Meetings, consisting of on-site visits by members
of the Executive Board to stimulate interactive dialogue with
employees across the organization.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

GENERAL ,
Wolters Kluwer nv is the parent company of the Wolters Kluwer
Group. The Executive Board and the Supervisory Board are res-
ponsible for the corporate governance structure of the Company.
Over the last few years much has been done to improve the
Company’s corporate governance. On December 9, 2003, the
Dutch Corporate Governance Committee presented a new -
Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”). The Code is partly
based on international best practices. It is expected that the
Code will be supported by a governmental decree in the near
future. The Code contains general corporate governance principles
and concrete best practice recommendations (“Best Practice
Recommendations”). Listed companies may deviate from the
best practice provisions provided they give a satisfactory
explanation in their annual report {apply or explain).

Full disclosure about possible deviations is not yet mandatory
in this Annual Report for 2003 and internal discussions about
several Best Practice Recommendations are still ongoing.
Nevertheless, the Company will give an explanation of its current
position, steps that recently have been taken in order to further
improve its corporate governance, and a preliminary indication
where the Company may deviate from the Code. In line with the
recommendations of the Code, the Company will put corporate
governance on the agenda of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of April 21, 2004. '

After the publication of the Code the members of the
Executive and Supervisory Boards have had several meetings to
discuss the implications of the Code. In general, the Company is
very supportive of the Code. An assessment of the situation at

Wolters Kluwer has led to the conclusion that it already applies
most of the Best Practice Recommendations. Further steps are
underway to enhance Wolters Kluwer’s compliance. The
Company fully acknowledges the importance of good corporate
governance, taking into account its specific circumstances. In
certain areas these circumstances may lead to a deviation from
the Code, where in other areas even stricter rules than required

" under the Code will be applied.

EXECUTIVE BOARD

The Executive Board is responsible for the strategy, policy,

aims and results of the Company. On October 30, 2003, the- - - ~
Executive Board presented its Strategy Update. Reference is
made to the paragraphs under Report of the Executive Board

on page 14 in this Annual Report for a more detailed description
of the strategy.

The Executive Board consists of at least three members.

The members are appointed by the General Meeting of
Shareholders. The remuneration of the members of the
Executive Board is determined by the Supervisory Board on

the advice of the Selection and Remuneration Committee of

the Supervisory Board. In line with the Code, the Remuneration
Policy and the new Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) will be
submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders on April 21,
2004.

It is the intention to align the individual performance of
the Executive Board Members with company performance.
Remuneration for the Executive Board consists of a base salary
and variable plans, including short-term incentive (cash bonus)
and long-term incentive plans.

Under the proposed LTIP the Executive Board Members can
earn depositary receipts for ordinary shares after a period of
three years, Granting of the shares is subject to clear and objective
three-year performance criteria that will be set upfront. After
earning the shares, the Executive Board Members will not be
restricted from selling them for a period of five years or until
the end of their employment, as recommended in the Code (Best
Practice Recommendation 11.2.3). Under the plan, grants recur
on an annual basis and as such the Executive Board members
will always have a strong incentive to safeguard the long-term
interests of the Company.

More details about both the remuneration policy and the
LTIP can be read in the remuneration report, published on
page 50 of this annual report.

A final decision has not yet been made with respect to the
Best Practice Recommendations in the Code regarding appoint-
ment of Executive Board Members for a term of four years and
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the maximum remuneration in the event of dismissal (Best
Practice Recommendations I1.1.1 and 11.2.7). In each case, the
Company plans to honor existing contracts with Executive
Board Members. The Dutch Corporate Governance Committee
has recommended to the legislator to amend the employment
law with respect to these subjects. The Company is interested to
see which proposals the Dutch legislator will bring forward in
this respect.

Wolters Kluwer has a very strict Code of Conduct for Insider
Trading. The Executive Board is only allowed to trade during
four Open Periods of two weeks, after publication of the annual,
half-year and quarterly results. Even during the Open Periods,
the Executive Board Members are only allowed to trade after
permission from the compliance officer. Permission must also be
asked for trading in securities of certain other companies active
in the sector. The reason for this strict Code of Conduct for
Insider Trading is that the Company wants to avoid the semblan-
ce of insider trading, and to protect the reputation of the
Company and its individual Board Members. Under the Wolters
Kluwer Code of Conduct for Insider Trading, the Executive
Board Members are not compelled, however, to periodically
notify the compliance officer of changes of their holdings in
other Dutch listed companies as recommended in the Code-
(Best Practice Recommendation 11.2.6). Given the type of business
the Company is in, it does not see any added value for the
Company to monitor trading in securities of all Dutch listed
companies.

In the course of 2004, the Company intends to adopt new
Executive Board regulations. These shall include a policy for
conflicts of interests. In addition, the Company will adopt a
code of conduct and a procedure concerning whistleblowers’
protection. After adoption, it intends to publish these regula-
tions on its corporate website.

SUPERVISORY BOARD
Wolters Kluwer is a two-tier company. The Executive Board
Members are responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Company. The role of the Supervisory Board is to supervise the
policies of the Executive Board and the general affairs of the
Company and its affiliated companies, and to assist the
Executive Board by providing advice, The Supervisory Board is
guided by the interests of the Company and its affiliated enter-
prises, and shall take into account the relevant interests of the
Company’s stakeholders.

The division of duties within the Supervisory Board and the
procedures of the Supervisory Board are laid down in a set of
regulations. Wolters Kluwer is working on adjustments to the
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Supervisory Board regulations as well as the regulations of its
Committees. The new regulations will be largely based on the
Code. After adoption, the new regulations are intended to be
posted on the corporate website.

The Supervisory Board consists of at least three persons. The
General Meeting of Shareholders shall appoint the members of
the Supervisory Board. In principal the Supervisory Board
Members may be appointed for a maximum of three four year
terms. At present all Supervisory Board Members are independent
from the Company. The number of supervisory board member-
ships of all Supervisory Board Members shall be limited to such

.extent that the proper performance of their duties is assured.

Before the end of 2004 none of the Supervisory Board Members
will be a member of more than five supervisory boards of Dutch
listed companies, for which purpose the chairmanship of a
supervisory board counts double. :

Wolters Kluwer considers it important that the Supervisory
Board Members are well informed about the business and
operations of the Company. As necessary, additional training is
provided in order to ensure the members can execute their res-
ponsibilities appropriately. Towards this end operating managers, .
including Divisional Chief Executive Officers, give presentations
about their businesses on a regular basis. In addition, the
Company facilitates visits to operating companies and individual
meetings with staff and line managers. In the course of 2004, it
will be discussed to which extent additional training for the
Supervisory Board Members could be useful.

The General Meeting of Shareholders shall determine the
remuneration of the Supervisory Board Members. The remune-
ration shall not depend on the results of the Company. The
Supervisory Board Members do not receive shares or stock
options by way of remuneration, nor shall they be granted loans.
They are bound by the same Code of Conduct for Insider
Trading as the Executive Board Members. They are not compel-
led to periodically notify the compliance officer of changes of
their holdings in other Dutch listed companies as recommended
in the Code (Best Practice Recommendation II1.7.3), for the same
reason as explained in the paragraph about the Executive Board.
At present, none of the Supervisory Board Members own any
securities in Wolters Kluwer,

COMMITTEES

. As part of its responsibilities the Audit Committee focuses on

the operation of internal risk management and control systems,
and the role and functioning of the internal audit department
and external auditors. The Audit Committee consists of at least
three people. At least one member of the Audit Committee shall
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be a financial expert.

The Selection and Remuneration Committee shall in any
event be responsible for drafting policies associated with remune-
ration within the Company and for a proposal to the
Supervisory Board regarding the specific remuneration of
individual Executive Board Members. It is also responsible for
drawing up selection criteria and appointment procedures for
Supervisory Board Members and Executive Board Members.

THE SHAREHOLDERS AND GENERAL MEETING
OF SHAREHOLDERS
At least once a year a General Meeting of Shareholders is

held. The agenda of the Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders shall in each case contain the report of the
Executive Board, the adoption of the financial statements, the

- report of the Supervisory Board and the proposal to distribute

dividend or other distributions. Resolutions to approve the
‘management conducted by the Executive Board and the super-
vision exercised by the Supervisory Board shall be voted on
separately. ‘

The General Meeting of Shareholders appoints the members.
of the Supervisory Board and Executive Board. The Articles of
Association stipulate that such appointment can take place
based on a binding or a non-binding nomination, prepared by
the Supervisory Board. The procedure with respect to a binding
nomination deviates from the procedure proposed in the Code
(Best Practice Recommendation IV.1.1).

The General Meeting of Shareholders shall be called by the
Supervisory Board or the Executive Board. Shareholders and/or
holders of depositary receipts who alone or jointly represent half
a percent (1/2%) of the issued capital, are entitled to request the
Executive Board to put items on the agenda for the General
Meeting of Shareholders. The Company determines a registration
date (record date) for the exercise of the voting rights and the
rights relating to Meetings. The Chairman of the Supervisory
Board leads the General Meetings.

At the Stock Exchange depositary receipts for ordinary shares
{(“Depositary Receipts”) are traded. The Wolters Kluwer Trust
Office issues the Depositary Receipts and holds the underlying
ordinary shares. The Holders of Depositary Receipts can
exchange their Depositary Receipts into ordinary shares under
all circumstances and without limitation. Furthermore,
Depositary Receipt holders who attend a General Meeting in

" person will under all circumstances get the right to vote, regard-

less of the number of Depositary Receipts held by them.
Therefore, the Depositary Receipts are not a measure against
unfriendly takeovers. The reason for the issuance of Dépositary

Receipts is to prevent a {chance) minority of shareholders from
controlling the decision making process as a result of absenteeism
at a General Meeting of Shareholders. An extra meeting with the
Board of the Wolters Kluwer Trust Office was held to discuss
corporate governance issues and especially the implications of
the Code. Although discussions have not yet been finalized, both

" the Executive Board and the Board of the Trust Office have a

positive attitude with respect to most of the Best Practice
Recommendations regarding Depositary Receipts.

The Trust Office will publish a report on its activities once
a year in the annual report of the Company. At present all

. members of the Board of the Trust Office are independent.

The only measure against unfriendly takeovers is the ability
for the Wolters Kluwer Preference Shares Foundation to exercise
its option to acquire newly issued preference shares. This gives
the Executive Board the ability to study takeover proposals
thoroughly and to compare these with alternatives. The
Company believes this is in the interest of its shareholders. In
this respect it is important to note that all members of the Board
of the Preference Shares Foundation are independent from
the Company.

Since 2003, all meetings with larger groups of analysts and
investors are announced in advance on the website. All such
meetings can be followed via webcast or conference call. After
the meetings, the presentations are published on the website.
The Company does not pay any fees to parties for the carrying
out of research for analysts’ reports or for the production or
publication of analysts’ reports with the exception of credit
rating agencies.

The corporate website is an important means of providing
information to shareholders. Many improvements have been
made to this website in 2003. During 2004, the Company
intends to publish new information on corporate governance
and other related information.

AUDIT FUNCTIONS
The Executive Board is responsible for the quality and complete-
ness of publicly disclosed financial reports. The Supervisory
Board shall see to it that this responsibility is fulfilled.

The external auditor is appointed by the General Meeting
of Shareholders. Wolters Kluwer intends to have the auditor
appointed by the General Meeting of Shareholders every four
years, after a thorough assessment of the performance of the
external auditor. In addition to this thorough assessment, the
Executive Board and the Audit Committee shall report their
dealings with the external auditor to the Supervisory Board on
an annual basis. The Supervisory Board has the discretion to put
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the appointment of the external auditor on the agenda of the .
General Meeting of Shareholders before the lapse of a four-year
period, if so warranted. The external auditor may be questioned
by the General Meeting of Shareholders in relation to his auditor’s
opinion on the financial statements. The external auditor shall -

therefore attend and be entitled to address the General Meeting

of Shareholders. In the course of 2004 a new policy on auditor

independence will be adopted. In any event, the external auditor; '

attends the Supervisory Board meeting at which his report is -
discussed and at which the financial statements are to be
approved. The external auditor may request the Chairman of
the Audit.Committee for leave to attend the. meeting of the
Audit Committee. - v

The internal auditor operates under the responsibility of the ,.

Executive Board. The external auditor and the Audit Committee

are involved in drawing up the work schedule of the internal
audiror. The findings of the internal auditor will be presented
to the external auditor and the Audit Committee.

LEGAL STRUCTURE )
The ultimate parent company of the Wolters Kluwer Group is
Wolters Kluwer nv. In 2002 Wolters Kluwer nv abolished the
voluntary application of the structure regime {“structuur-
regeling”). As a consequence, the structure regime became
applicable to Wolters Kluwer Nederland by, which is the parent
company of the Dutch operating subsidiaries. Wolters Kluwer
US Corporation is the (in)direct parent company of the Unites
States-based operating subsidiaries. Operating companies outsi-
de the Netherlands and the United States are (in)directly owned
by Wolters Kluwer International Holding bv.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Executive Board has submitted the Financial Statements

for the financial year 2003 to us. We have also taken note of the
reports to the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board and
the statement by KPMG Accountants nv (as referred to in Article
26, paragraph 3 of the Company s Articles of Assocxatlon)

which we discussed with them.

Takmg their report into account, our Board signed the
Financial Statements 2003 in the presence of the auditor. We
propose to shareholders that they adopt these Financial
Statements (see page 55 et seq of this Annual Report) at the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on April 21, 2004,
Resolutions to approve the management conducted by the

" Executive Board and to approve the supervision exercised by

the Supervisory Board shall be voted on separately in the Annual

- General Meeting of Shareholders.

It is proposed to make a payment from the reserves to our
shareholders of EUR 0.55 per share in cash or at the option of
our shareholders in stock, which is equal to last year’s dividend.
Stock payments will be determined on April 29, 2004, after close
of trading. Upon approval by the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders, the payments will be made as from May 4, 2004.

ACTIVITIES

The Supervisory Board held eight meetings in 2003. Each mee-
ting was partly attended by the Executive Board. All of our |
Board Members attended five or more of these meetings. One of
the meetings was combined with a working visit to our subsidiary
Atr3s in Spain, where the local management gave a presentation
on the business.

In the absence of the Executive Board, the functioning of the
Supervisory Board and the Executive Board and the performan-
ce of the individual members of both Boards were discussed.
The composition of the Supervisory Board, the Audit -
Committee, the Selection and Remuneration Committee and the
Executive Board were discussed in the absence of the Executive
Board as well. ‘

The Supervisory Board has been actively in discussion with the
Executive Board on the development of the strategy. One of the
meetings of the Supervisory Board was fully dedicated to the
development of the strategy, which was announced on October
30, 2003. A member of the Supervisory Board also attended a two
day meeting with senior managers in September, during which the
strategy, goals and their implementation were discussed.

The buy back of bonds and the issue of the new EUR 700
million bond were topics of discussion during several meetings
and have been approved by the Supervisory Board. Other subjects

discussed during our meetings were major acquisitions, hedging
and the reorganization of Legal Tax & Business North America.
During the course of the year the Executive Board informed the

-Supervisory Board on the course of business and important
‘developments and decisions. In addition to the scheduled

meetings, the Chairman and other members of the Supervisory
Board had regular contact with the Chairman and other members
of the Executive Board.

The Supervisory Board closely monitors the developments
with respect to corporate governance. The new Dutch Corporate
Governance Code has been discussed with the Executive Board.
Owerall, the Supervisory Board has a positive attitude towards
the Code and is supportive of the actions that are being taken by
the Executive Board in order to further improve the corporate
governance at Wolters Kluwer and to apply the majority of the
best practice recommendations of the Code. Internal discussions
with respect to the implementation of the Code are still going

“on. It is the intention to finalize these discussions before the end

of 2004.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, comprising Messrs. Westdijk (Chairman),
Baan and De Ruiter met on two occasions in 2003: during the
preparation of the annual and half year results, These meetings
were held in the presence of representatives of the Executive
Board, the external auditor and corporate staff members.
Among the main items discussed were the changes in the
international financial reporting standards, the internal risk
management and control systems, the recommendations and
observations of internal and external auditors, the hedging policy,
tax planning and the buy back of bonds and new EUR 700 million
bond issue.

SELECTION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

This Committee met three times in 2003. In view of the recom-
mendation of the new Dutch Corporate Governance Code,

Mrt. Pennings took over the chairmanship of the committee
from Mr. De Ruiter, who stayed on the Committee as member.
Mt. Baan replaced Mr. Walravens after his retirement. The
Committee discussed the remuneration policy for the Executive
Board, including the new Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) and
changes to the short-term incentive plan. The Committee also
discussed the remuneration for the individual Executive Board
Members. The remuneration policy and the LTIP will be put on
the agenda of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on

‘April 21, 2004. Details about the remuneration policy and the

LTIP can be found in the remuneration report, which is published
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on page 50 of this Annual Report,

Separately, the Committee recommended not increasing the
remuneration of the Supervisory Board in 2004.

The Committee addressed the composition of the Executive
Board, which resulted in the appointment by the Supervisory .
Board of Ms. McKinstry as Chairman of the Executive Board
and the nomination of Mr. Beerkens as member of the Executive
Board to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2003.

The Committee also actively searched for a new member for
its own Board after the retirement of Mr. Walravens. This has. -
resulted in the nomination of Mr. Scheffers as new member of
the Supervisory Board at the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders on April 21, 2004, o

COMPOSITION
Members of the Supervisory Board are appointed by the
General Meeting of Shareholders. At the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of April 16, 2003, Mr. Pennings was
reappointed as member of the Supervisory Board. At the same
date, Mr. Walravens retired as Supervisory Board Member.
After careful consideration the Supervisory Board proposes
to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on April 21, .
2004, o reappoint Mr. Van Miert as member of the Supervisory
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Board. Furthermore the Supervisory Board proposes to appoint
Mr. Scheffers as new member of the Supervisory Board.

The Supervisory Board currently consists of six members. If
Mr. Scheffers is appointed by the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders, the number of Supervisory Board Members will
be seven again, which is in line with the profile. For information
on each of the Supervisory Board Members about age, profes-
sion, principal position, nationality, other professions, date of
initial employment and the current term of office, reference is
made to page 9 of this Annual Report. All members of the
Supervisory Board are independent from the Company.

Finally, we would like to take this opportunity-to thank the
Executive Board and all employees for their efforts in the past year.

" Amsterdarm, March 5, 2004

Supervisory Board
H. de Ruiter, Chairman

- J.V.H. Pennings, Deputy Chairman

A. Baan

. AJ. Frost
- K.A.L.M. Van Miert

N.J. Westdijk

THE PROFESSIONAL'S FIRST CHOICE

49




REMUNERATION REPORT

50

.. approval. : . .-

INTRODUCTION

Historically, Wolters Kluwer has provided details in its annual
reports on the remuneration of Executive Board Members.
Remuneration of individual Executive Board Members is
determined by the Supervisory Board, based on recommenda-
tions from its Selection and Remuneration Committee.

In accordance with the recommendations of the Code of the
Dutch Corporate Governance Committee, Wolters Kluwer’s
Remuneration Policy and Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTTP) for
the members of the Executive Board will be submitted to the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for adoption and

" REMUNERATION EXECUTIVE BOARD IN 2003

Individual compensation and other consideration for members

- of the Executive Board are shown in detail on pages 92 and 93

of this Annual Report (Financial Statements). In 2003 the base

salary for Executive Board Members was increased with 3%.

Ms. McKinstry’s salary was increased in September 2003, after
her appointment as Chairman of the Executive Board. Mr.
Beerkens’ salary was increased in 2003 to reflect his appointment
to the Executive Board. In 2003 the annual bonuses for the
Executive Board were based on achievement of budgeted ordinary
net income, with a payout target of 70% of the base salary.

GENERAL REMUNERATION POLICY FOR THE EXECUTIVE
BOARD FOR 2004 AND SUBSEQUENT YEARS

The goal for Executive Board remuneration is to align individual
and company performance, to strengthen long-term commitment
to the Company and to attract and retain superior managers.

The remuneration of the Executive Board Members is based
on surveys and analysis by internationally recognized firms spe-
cializing in executive compensation. Because Wolters Kluwer is
a global organization and its Executive Board represents diverse
nationalities, remuneration is benchmarked against surveys from
Dutch, European and U.S. companies.

Remuneration for the Executive Board consists of three ele-
ments: a base salary, a Short-Term Incentive Plan (cash bonus)
and a Long-Term Incentive Plan (performance shares). The base
salary is fixed and both the short-term and long-term incentives
vary according to performance. At risk elements of the remune-
ration package make up the largest portion of the Executive
Board’s total compensation. This reflects the philosophy that
all senior executive compensation must be linked directly to

performance that returns value to shareholders, The variable
part of the compensation is thus linked to objective and measu-
rable targets that are tied to creating shareholder value.

In 2004 base salaries for Executive Board Members will remain
constant compared with 2003 year-end levels. The Short-Term
Incentive Plan (STIP) provides the Executive Board Members a
cash bonus if specific targets are achieved. STIP objectives are
financial criteria determined to create value and in 2004 the
STIP target for members of the Executive Board will be linked

" to free cash flow. Executive Board Members participate in pen-

sion schemes of their home countries except in the Netherlands
where an individual defined contribution plan is used. In
France, additional pension insurance has been arranged on top
of the local scheme.

The Supervisory Board recommends adoption of the Wolters
Kluwer Executive Board Remuneration Policy by the Annual '
General Meeting of Shareholders on April 21, 2004.

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN FOR THE EXECUTIVE BOARD
In 2003 the Executive Board announced the three-year strategy
designed to increase shareholder value. The principles of Return
on Invested Capital and Total Shareholder Return are critical
measures of the Company’s future performance. Adopting a busi-
ness strategy and remuneration plans centered on maximizing
returns will result in more disciplined, effective management of
the business. As a result, a proposal will be made to the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders on April 21, 2004, to approve
the implementation of the new Long-Term Incentive Plan
(LTTP) for Executive Board Members. The LTIP will align our
organization and management to achieve the strategic goals and
tie Executive Board compensation to shareholder value.

- Prior to 2004 Wolters Kluwer operated a stock option plan
for Executive Board Members. While this plan was effective in
the past, conditions in recent years have made it significantly less
s0. Recent fluctuations in market conditions mean that option
plans are less clearly linked to company performance. In addi-
tion, option programs do not promote a long-term commitment
to the Company since they encourage rapid exercise and sale of
awards, particularly during periods of market volatility. The pro-
posed plan uses performance shares {depositary receipts). At the
beginning of a three-year period, a conditional award of shares is
established. The total number of shares that the Executive
Board Members will actually receive at the end of the three-year
performance period fully depends on the achievement of pre-
determined performance conditions. Thus, this program is better
aligned with shareholders’ interests, since targets are based on
relative performance improvement compared to peer companies.
The first three-year performance period would be 2004-2006.
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PERFORMANCE -CONDITIONS - R
It is proposed that rewards be based on achievement of Relative
Total Shareholder Return (RTSR) targets. RTSR is the average
weighted share price performance, plus dividends, relativetoa
group of 15 peer companies, measured over a period of three
financial years. It compares Wolters Kluwer shareholder returns
to those of its peer group, which has been established as the
following companies: Arnoldo Mondadori, Dow Jones, EMAP,
Grupo Prisa, John Wiley & Sons, Knight Ridder, Lagardere, -
MecGraw Hill, Pearson, Reed Elsevier, Reuters, Taylor & Francis,
Thomson, UBM and VNU. This peer group represents the
media companies comprised in the Morgan Stanley Capital_ . .. ..
Index (MSCI), the most widely used index by meédia analysts.

The Executive Board can earn 0-150% of the number of
conditionally awarded shares at the end of the three-year period,
dependent on the improvement in RTSR. For example, Wolters
Kluwer is currently in a fourth (bottom) quartile position com-
pared to its peer group. The proposed plan for the first three-
year period would pay out 100% of the number of conditionally
awarded shares if RTSR improved to a second quartile position
for Wolters Kluwer {the fifth to eighth position).

The conditional share awards for the Executive Board are
determined based on comparable market information from
Dutch, European and U.S. companies. Grants for the current
Executive Board Members reflect the previous option award
levels used in the historical plan. A pay out of 100% of the
conditionally awarded shares for the first three-year period
would total approximately 500,000 shares for the members
of the Executive Board jointly.

SENJOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION o
Senjor management remuneration will consist of a base salary, a.
STIP and a LTIP. The senior management STIP will be based
on the achievement of specific objective targets that are linked
to creating value for shareholders, such as revenue growth.

Vesting of the senior management performance shares is sub-
ject to objective three-year performance conditions similar to the
Executive Board LTIP. The targets will be based on improve-
ments in economic profit performance within Divisions and
improvements in RTSR.

Amsterdam, March 5, 2004

The Selection and Remuneration Committee

THE PROFESSIONAL'S FIRST CHOICE

ANNUAL REPORT 2003

51




REPORT OF THE STICHTING ADMINISTRATIEKANTOOR WOLTERS KLUWER
(WOLTERS KLUWER TRUST OFFICE)

52

ACTIVITIES ,

The Board of the Trust Office met twice in 2003. The Board
also attended the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. In
February 2004, an additional meeting was held with as main
purpose to discuss the implications of the Code of the Dutch
Corporate Governance Committee,

The general developments at Wolters Kluwer, as well as the
annual figures of 2002 were discussed with a representative of
the Executive Board. In November 2003, the Board of the Trust
Office was also informed in detail about the Strategy Update
that was presented on October 30, 2003. Other items of discus-
sion included corporate governance and the composition of the

Board of the Trust Office.

Prior to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in
2003, the Board of the Trust Office discussed the agenda for
this Meeting. After careful consideration, and after listening to -
the discussions at the General Meeting, the Board of the Trust
Office supported all proposals. During the Annual General
Meeting the Chairman-of the Board of the Trust Office, Mr.
Traas, gave an explanation about the voting behavior of the
Trust Office with respect to the proposal to approve the mana-
gement conducted by the Executive Board and the supervision
exercised by the Supervisory Board. The Board of the Trust
Office represented 99.5% of the capital with voting rights that
was present at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

TRUST CONDITIONS

According to the Trust Conditions it is possible to exchange
depositary receipts into ordinary shares without limitation. All
holders of depositary receipts who attend the General Meeting
of Shareholders in person have the right to vote. They are not
required to submit a request for that purpose prior to the
General Meeting. The Trust Conditions stipulate that the Trust
Office must exercise the rights attaching to the ordinary shares
in such a manner that - alongside the interests of the Company
and its affiliated companies and all other stakeholders - the inte-
rests of the holders of depositary receipts are safeguarded in the
best possible manner.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE :

In February 2004, the Board of the Trust Office held a separate
meeting to discuss corporate governance, and more specifically
the implications of the Code of the Dutch Corporate
Governance Committee. The Board of the Trust Office agrees to
the principle that depositary receipts for ordinary shares are a
means of preventing a (chance) minority of shareholders from
controlling the decision making process as a result of absenteeism

at a General Meeting of Shareholders. Because it is possible in
all circumstances to exchange depositary receipts into ordinary
shares without limitation and because all depositary receipt holders
who attend the General Meeting in person get the right to vote,
the depositary receipts are not an anti takeover measure.
Overall, the Board of the Trust Office has a positive attitude

" towards the Code. The Board of the Trust Office has asked the

Company to facilitate a possibility for the Trust Office to directly
communicate with the holders of depositary receipts. The contact
details of the Trust Office are: trustoffice@wolterskluwer.com.
Furthermore the Company will on a more regular basis than in

the past provide the Board of the Trust Office witk: relevant

information. The Company shall however not disclose to the
Trust Office information that has not been made public.
Discussions regarding various best practice recommendations
of the Code are still continuing. It is the intention to finalize all
these discussions before the end of 2004,

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF THE TRUST OFFICE

In 2003, Mr. Peters resigned because he reached the age of 72.
He was succeeded by Mr. S.D. de Bree. Mr. Bolt has been
appointed as Deputy Chairman and Deputy Secretary after the
departure of Mr. Peters.

Mr. Traas will not be available for reappointment in 2004
because he has been on the Board for a longer period of time
than allowed according to the Dutch Corporate Governance
Code. The Board of the Trust Office is grateful to Mr. Traas for
his contribution to the Trust Office during the many years he
has been member and Chairman of the Board. The Board of the
Trust Office intends to appoint Mr. De Bree as Chairman during
the Board meeting of April 14, 2004.

The remuneration of the members of the Board of the Trust
Office is EUR 6,000 per year for the Chairman and EUR 5,000
per year for the other members. If the members of the Board
attend more than three meetings a year they will receive an addi-
tional compensation of EUR 500 per meeting. The members of
the Board of the Trust Office have the following functions:

Mr. L. Traas: Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Sperwer
Holding bv, SPAR bv and Flentrop Orgelbouw by, Director of
Nederlands Sperwer Verbond, member of the Board of Stichting
Continuiteit ASMI and Stichting Administratiekantoor
Financieringspreferente Aandelen Océ nv, member Shareholders
Committee Kas Bank nv, Council Enterprise Section of the
Amsterdam Court of Appeals.

M. H. Bolt: Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Aegon
Nederland nv and Vice Chairman of the Supervisory Board of
Schuitema nv.
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Mr. S.CJJ. Kortmann: Deputy Justice of the Courts of Appeals:
of ‘s Hertogenbosch and Arnhem, member of the Supervisory
Board of SNS Reaal Groep nv, Kropman B.V. and Dela
Cobperatie, Chairman of the Board of Stichting
Administratiekantoor Preferente Aandelen Randstad Holding
nv, Chairman of the Board of Stichting Preferente Aandelen .-
Fugro, member of the Board of Stichting Continuiteit ING nv,
Stichting Administratickantoor van Aandelen Royal Grolsch,
Stichting Preferente Aandelen Royal Nedlloyd Group and
Stichting Preferente Aandelen DSM, as well as Chairman or
member of boards of some foundations focusing on educational
programs for lawyers. -

Mr. S.D. de Bree: Chairman of the Supervisory Board of
Stork nv, Norske Skog Parenco bv and Royal Boskalis-
Westminster nv, member of the Supervisory Board of Siemens
Nederland nv, Board Member of Entergy Corporation,
Chairman of the Board of Stichting Preferente Aandelen Philips
nv, Stichting Administratiekantoor van Aandelen Royal Grolsch
and Stichting' Administratiekantoor Preferente Aandelen
Hagemeyer nv. '

Mr. A HJ. Risseeuw: Chairman of the Supervisory Board of
KPN nv, Intergamma by, AOT nv, Samas-Group nv and
Groeneveld bv, member of the Supervisory Board of Heineken
nv, NPM Capital nv and Blokker Holding nv, member of the
Supervisory Board of TNO Delft, member of the Board of the
Administratiekantoor ING nv and Stichting
Administratiekantoor Preferente Aandelen Randstad Holding
nv, member of the Advisory Board of Deloitte & Touche in
Rotterdam,

Depositary receipts

Depositary receipts were issued and redeemed in 2003 as follows:

UNDER ADMINISTRATION ON DECEMBER 31, 2002 |

DEPOSITARY RECEIPTS ISSUED IN
CONNECTION WITH STOCK DIVIDEND

DEPOSITARY RECEIPTS [SSUED IN
EXCHANGE OF REGISTERED SHARES |

DEPOSITARY RECEIPTS REDEEMED

UNDER ADMINISTRATION ON DECEMBER 31, 2003

STATEMENT

ANNUAL REPORT‘ZOO]

Depositary Receipts have been issued for 96.8 % of the issued
ordinary share capital on the balance sheet date.

* Amsterdam, March 5, 2004

The Board of Stichting Administratiekantoor Wolters Kluwer
L. Traas, Chairman

H. Bolt, Deputy Chairman/Deputy Secretary

S.C.JJ. Kortmann, Secretary

S.D. de Bree

AH]J. Risseeuw

The Executive Board of Wolters Kluwer nv and the Board of
Stichting Administratiekantoor Wolters Kluwer hereby declare
that, in their joint opinion, the requirements regarding the inde-
pendence of the memberts of the Board of Stichting
Administratiekantoor Wolters Kluwer, as laid down in Appendix
X to the Listing and Issuing Rules of Euronext nv, have been

satisfied.

Amsterdam, March 5, 2004

The Executive Board of Wolters KluQer nv
The Board of Stichting Administratiekantoor Wolters Kluwer
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REPORT OF STICHTING PREFERENTE AANDELEN WOLTERS KLUWER

(WOLTERS KLUWER PREFERENCE SHARES FOUNDATION)
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ACTIVITIES
The Boatd of the Foundation met twice in 2003. The annual
figures of 2002 and the developments at Wolters Kluwer were
among the matters that were discussed. A Member of the
Executive Board gave a detailed presentation regarding the
strategy update, that was announced on 30 October 2003.
Furthermore the Board of the Foundation discussed at length
the recommendations of the Dutch Corporate Governance
Committee. ) _ :
The Foundation acquired no preference shares during the
year under review. ' :

EXERCISE OF THE OPTION

" The option on the preference shares is at present the only con-

struction at Wolters Kluwer that can be regarded as protection
against unfriendly takeover bids. The Foundation is entitled to
exercise the option on the preference shares in such a way that
the number of preference shares taken will be no more than
100% of the number of issued and outstanding ordinary shares
at the time of exercise. Exercise of the option gives the
Executive Board the possibility to study proposals thoroughly
and to compare these with alternatives.

FORMATION OF THE BOARD OF THE FOUNDATION

Mr. EJ.J.C. van Groeningen retired by rotation in 2003. He has
been reappointed. The Board of the Foundation consists entirely
of persons having no association with Wolters Kluwer within the
meaning of Appendix X to the Listing and Issuing Rules of
Euronext Amsterdam nv.

Amsterdam, March 5, 2004

The Board of Stichting Preferente Aandelen Wolters Kluwer
J.C.T. van der Wielen, Chasrman

S. Bergsma

RW.J.M. Bonnier

H.G. Bouwman

EJJ.C. van Groeningen

STATEMENT

The Executive Board of Wolters Kluwer nv and the Board of
Stichting Preferente Aandelen Wolters Kluwer hereby declare
that, in their joint opinion, the requirements regarding the inde-
pendence of the members of the Board of Stichting Preferente
Aandelen Wolters Kluwer, as laid down in Appendix X to the

"Listing and Issuing Rules of Euronext Amsterdam nv, have been

satisfied.
Amsterdam, March 5, 2004

The Executive Board of Wolters-Kluwer nv
The Board of Stichting Preferente Aandelen Wolters Kluwer
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT ANNUAL REPORT 2003

IN MILLIONS OF EUROS X J002

- Restated

REVENUES {Note 2) 3,965
Exceptional other income/

321

results from divestments (Note 3}

Costs of raw materials, subcontracted

work and other external expenses

Salaries and wages (Note 4}

Social security charges and pensions {Note 4)

Other operating expenses

Depreciation (Note 5)

Amortization of intangible fixed assets {(Note &)
Exceptional restructuring expense (Note 7}

Total operating expenses

OPERATING INCOME

Financing results (Note 8)

Income before taxation
Taxation on income {Note 9}

Non-consolidated and minority interests (Note 10}

NET INCOME (LOSS)

Earnings pér.share (EUR)
Diluted earnings per share (EUR)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ,'U

58

BEFORE APPROPRIATION OF RESULTS

IN MILLIONS OF EUROS AS AT DECEMBER 31

FIXED ASSETS

Intangible fixed assets (Note 11}
Tangible fixed assets (Note 12)
. Financial fixed assets (Note 13}

3791

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories (Note 14)

Accounts receivable (Note 15)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 16)

296 |
20"

. 14590

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred income
Trade creditors

Other current liabilities {Note 17}

71

293

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

WORKING CAPITAL

2054

675"
©-284
612

CAPITAL EMPLOYED

WOLTERS KLUWER

15711 .

483




ANNUAL REPORT 2003

tN MILLIONS OF EUROS AS AT DECEMBER 31 .. 2002

7 ' Restated

[

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Subordinated bonds

Bonds

Loans from credit institutions
Unsubordinated convertible bonds
Perpetual cumulative subordinated bonds

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Note 18)

PROVISIONS (Note 19)
MINORITY INTERESTS

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Issued share capital

Share premium reserve
Non-distributable reserve for translation differences
Other reserves

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY {Note 20}

TOTAL FINANCING
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

IN MILLIONS OF EUROS 2002 ;
Restafédf,
Operating income 669
Depreciation 118
- Amortization of intangible fixed assets ‘415
Exceptional restructuring expense . -
Exceptional other income/results from divestments 321
Autonomous movements in working. capital e
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS
Paid financing costs 131
Paid corporate income tax. +4109)
Appropriation of reorganization provisions (28) )
Other ' 1
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net expenditure fixed assets (147)
Appropriation of acquisition provisions (28)
Acquisition spending {300).
Divestments of activities 30
CASH FLOW INVESTMENTS
CASH FLOW SURPLUS
Exercise of stock options 1
Swap gains e
Movements in long-term loans - {136)
Movements in short-term borrowings 184
Movements in bank debts 5)
Dividend payments (92)
Dividend on own shares -
Repurchased shares (24)
CASH FLOW FINANCING (7))
NET CASH FLOW 58
Cash and cash equivalents as at January 1 " 239 o
Exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents {4)
235
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT DECEMBER 31 . 293";
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Unless otherwise indicated the figures in these financial statements
are in millions of euros.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND PRESENTATION IN 2003

In 2003, Wolters Kluwer nv {‘the company’) has made the following
changes in its accounting policies, in accordance with changes in

Dutch accounting standards:

» RJ 270 (profit and loss account, corresponding with TAS 18);

» RJ 271 (employee benefits, corresponding with TAS 19);

» RJ 160 (which relates to post balance sheet events,
corresponding with the IFRS accounting standard IAS 10)..

The following overview shows the total effect of these changes
on revenues, net income and opening balance equity:

IN MILLIONS OF EUROS

RJ 270 Profit and loss account
R} 271 Employee benefits
RJ 160 Post balance sheets events

TOTAL

Reference is made to the ‘Other Information’ paragraph
regarding the detailed effect of these changes.

Guideline R] 270 includes detailed revenue recognition
criteria. The impact on Wolters Kluwer’s business primarily
relates to the definition of revenues and the timing of revenue
recognition. .

Revenues are defined as benefits arising in the course of
ordinary activities. We concluded that shipping and handling
fees should now be'included in revenues and that the royalties
owed to professional societies relating to contract publishing -
should, unless identified as an agency contract, be included in
cost of revenues rather than in revenues. Previously, shipping
and handling fees were credited to cost of sales and royalties
were charged to revenues.

Revenues of products that consist of a combination of goods
and services are now recognized based on a split of the fair

value of the individual components. Previously, revenues of these

products were mainly recognized upon shipment rather than

based on a split of the fair value of the individual components.

. If returns on a product category exceed a thréshold, it is assumed

that the transfer of the ownership of the product has only
occurred upon receipt of the payment from the customer.

- Previously, full revenues were recognized after a deduction of

a provision for estimated returns.

Within RJ 271 there are multiple options on how to account
for pension costs and liabilities. Wolters Kluwer has adopted
the variant based on IAS 19. Under IAS 19, calculations may
be based on long-term assumptions for both pension commit-

. ments and the return on assets of the fund, with variances between

the estimates and actual figures being spread over a large number
of years, :

In compliance with R] 160 the declaration of a cash
distribution or dividend is regarded as a post balance sheet
event and therefore no longer presented under current liabilities.

The company has made
some presentation changes to
further align its balance sheet
and profit and loss account
with the Dutch guidelines for
presentation ‘Besluit modellen
jaarrekening’. However, for
reasons of international peer
comparison the company
has decided to present the
exceptional restructuring
- expense in one separate line.

In line with RJ 140, which deals with changes in accounting
policies, the 2002 figures have been restated.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidation comprises Wolters Kluwer nv and all group

companies in which Wolters Kluwer nv exercises a
controlling influence on management and financial policy.
Insofar as complied with the requirements for exemption in
section 403 of the Dutch Civil Code, Book 2, the financial
statements of these subsidiaries have not been made up in
accordance with the regulations laid down in the Dutch Civil
Code Book 2, Title 9. -

" The operational results of the subsidiaries that have been
acquired or divested in the course of the fiscal year are included
in the consolidated profit and loss account from the date of
transfer of control. Wolters Kluwer nv has filed a list of the
subsidiaries at the Trade Register in Amsterdam.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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As provided in section 402 of the Dutch Civil Code, Book 2,
the company profit and loss account includes only the after-tax
results of participating interests, as Wolters Kluwer nv's figures
are included in the consolidated financial statements,

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with-Dutch
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from

" those estimates.

PRINCIPLES FOR THE VALUATION
OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

GENERAL _
The assets and liabilities are recorded at historical costs.
Assets and liabilities not mentioned hereafter are recorded at
face value, in the case of assets after deduction of necessary
provisions.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

Foreign currency items in the balance sheet are translated as at
the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. The trans-
lation differences are reflected in the profit and loss account.

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange
rates prevailing at the transaction date.

The valuation of assets and liabilities of consolidated fdreign
subsidiaries and related long-term loans in foreign currencies
and related financial instruments is effected using the exchange
rates, prevailing at the balance sheet date. The resulting trans-
lation differences are taken to shareholders’ equity.

The results of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are trans-
tated at the average exchange rates during the year. The arising

differences between the average exchange rates and the year-erid

rates are taken to shareholders’ equity.

The main exchange rates to the euro were:

1 EURO = 2003 2002 2003 2002

Rate as at 31 December Average rate

US DOLLAR 0.94 -

GB POUND

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

- Goodwill
Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of
acquisition of an enterprise and the fair value of identifiable
assets less identifiable liabilities acquired, taking into account
related tax effects to the extent that these are considered
realizable. The assets may include publishing rights not
previously capitalized by the enterprise and other intangible
fixed assets. The liabilities include provisions considered
necessary for reorganizations and restructurings.

As from January 1, 1996, goodwill is capitalized and
amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
economic life of the business acquired. The estimated useful
economic life is assumed not to exceed 20 years, unless there
are compelling grounds on which to rebut this maximum.

The book value of goodwill is reassessed periodically on the
basis of actual income and expectations of future cash flows.
If and to the extent that goodwill is considered to be impaired
in value, this is charged to the profit and loss account as an
impairment.

Publishing rights

Publishing rights acquired from third parties, including
subscription accounts and databases, are valued at the lower
of cost or market value using the following methods:

» the value of publishing rights is established on the basis
of discounted future cash flows. The rates used vary with
the market share of the associated publishing right and its
profitability;

P subscription accounts are valued on the basis of discounted
future cash flows for a number of years, after allowing
for compensation of other factors of production, including
royalties;
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B the value of publishing rights and subscription accounts
has been based on an estimate of the cost of replacing or;
reproducing the asset. Publishing rights acquired from “'
third parties and valued as mentioned above are shown
net of deferred taxation.

With effect from January 1, 2001, publishing rights are amortized
over the estimated useful economic life, which is assumed ‘
not to exceed 20 years, unless there are compelling grounds on
which to rebut this assumption.

If and to the extent that publishing rights are considered
10 be impaired in value, this is charged to the profit and loss.,
account as an impairment. ‘

Other intangible fixed assets

Other intangible fixed assets relate to license fees, subscriber
lists, information systems (for internal use), and depreciable

publishing rights that are valued at cost less depreciation.

If and to the extent that other intangibles are considered

to be impaired in value, this is charged to the profit and loss
account as depreciation.

Development costs of software are expensed as incurred
until its technological and economic feasibility have been
demonstrated. Capitalized software is depreciated using the
straight-line method over the economic life of the software,
not to exceed five years. . .

Amortization (applied to goodwill and publishing rights)
and depreciation (applied to other intangibles) is calculated
as follows:

CGOODWILL
PUBLISHING RIGHTS
OTHER INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Tangible fixed assets, consisting of land and buildings, machinery
and equipment and other fixed assets such as office equipment
and vehicles are valued at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is calculated as follows:

BUILDINGS
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT
OTHER

No depreciation is applied to land.
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CFINANCIAL FIXED ASSETS

Financial fixed assets include non-consolidated participating
interests. Participating interests held on a permanent basis over

- which significant influence can be exercised are valued at net

asset value, Other participating interests are valued at the lower

* of cost and market value.

"INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable
value, taking into account a systematically determined provision
for obsolescence. Cost is determined using the first-in-first-out

- principle. The cost price of internally produced goods is

generally the manufacturing and publishing cost excluding
overheads. Trade goods purchased from third parties are valued

“at the purchase price.

- ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Trade and other accounts receivable are carried at face value
less any provisions considered necessary. Accounts receivable
include deferred tax claims to the extent these are considered

‘realizable. Tax claims are calculated by the same method as used '

for determining the provision for deferred taxation.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Results from financial instruments are accounted for in the same
manner as the underlying exposure. Premiums and discounts are
accounted for as interest charges.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognized if the-company has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and the magnitude of the
obligation can be reasonably estimated.

- Deferred taxation
The provision for deferred taxation is determined on the basis
of the differences between commercial and tax valuations of
assets and liabilities, at the applicable tax rate.

- Reorganization/restructuring
The provision for reorganization/restructuring relates to
provisions for integration of activities and other substantial
changes of the organizational structure. Costs for terminations
of employment and onerous contracts (such as costs for the
termination of lease commitments and discontinuation of
business lines) are taken into account.
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The short-term commitments relating to expected spending due
within one year are presented under other current liabilities.

Employee benefits/pensions

The company has arranged pension schemes in various countries
for most of its employees, in accordance with the legal require-
ments, customs and the local situation in the countries involved.
These pension schemes are partly managed by the company itself
and partly entrusted to external entities, such as industry pension
funds, company pension funds and insurance companies. In
addition, the company also provides certain employees with other

benefits upon retirement. These benefits include contributions. - ...

towards medical health plans in the United States, where the

" employer refunds part of the insurance premium for retirees or,
in the case of uninsured schemes, bears the medical expenses
himself while deducting the participants’ contributions.

Defined benefit plan pension obligations are calculated in

" accordance with the projected unit credit method of actuarial
cost allocation. Under this method, differences between the
expected and actual return on the plan assets, as well as actuarial
changes, are only recorded in the profit and loss account if the
total of these accumulated differences and changes exceeds a
bandwidth of 10% of the largest of the plan liabilities and the
fair value of the related plan assets. The part that exceeds the
bandwidth is charged to the profit and loss account over the
members’ remaining years of service. Changes of defined benefit
obligations resulting from revised plans regarding prior service
periods (past service cost) are recognized on a straight-line basis
over the average period of the members’ remaining year of
service, so until the benefits become vested. To the extent the
benefits are already immediately vested following the introduction
of, or changes to, the defined benefit plans, these changes are
recognized in the profit and loss account immediately.

The pension premiums of defined contribution plans are

expensed as incurred.

MINORITY INTERESTS -
Minority interests are carried at the third parties’ share of the
underlying shareholders’ equiry of the group company concerned.

PRINCIPLES FOR THE
DETERMINATION OF RESULTS

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Exceptional items are defined as items arising from circum-
stances or transactions that, given their size or nature, are clearly
distinet from the ordinary activities of the company.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenues represent the revenues billed to third parties net of
value-added tax and discounts. Shipping and handling fees billed
to customers are included in revenues. Subscription income
received or receivable in advance of the delivery of services or
publications is included in deferred income.

- Goods .
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized upon shipment
and transfer of the significant risks and rewards of ownership
to the customer, provided that the ultimate collectability and
-final acceptance by the customer is reasonably assured. Revenue
from the sale of goods is recognized net of estimated returns.

- Services _
Revenue from the sale of services is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the specified period, unless there is evidence that a
different method better represents the stage of completion of
the service at the balance sheet date.

COSTS OF RAW MATERIALS, SUBCONTRACTED WORK

AND OTHER EXTERNAL EXPENSES

These costs relate to raw materials, subcontracted work and other
external expenses directly relating to products and services gene-
rated during the year and the purchase price of trade goods sold.

SALARIES AND WAGES, SOCIAL SECURITY CHARGES

AND PENSIONS

These categories include all labor costs regarding personnel
employed on the basis of a contract. If there is no relationship
between the labor costs and the actual FTEs, expenses are
accounted in ‘other operating expenses’.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expenses include housing and office costs,
promotion, storage and distribution costs, training costs and
other general costs.

- DEPRECIATION

Depreciation relates to intangible fixed assets other than good-
will and publishing rights and tangible fixed assets. Depreciation
is calculated using the straight-line methed over the economic
life of each asset category. Depreciation also includes book
results attributable to fixed asset divestments.

AMORTIZATION OF INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Amortization of goodwill and publishing rights includes both
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the amortization calculated using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful economic life, with a maximum of 20 years
unless there are compelling grounds on which to rebut this -
assumption, and impairments. Goodwill and publishing rights
are tested for impairment annually. An impairment loss is
recognized if the book value, computed as mentioned above,
permanently exceeds the value of the asset. :

TAXATION

Corporate taxation is calculated on the basis of income before
taxation, taking into account the various local tax rates and;
regulations in the different countries. The effects of changes
in tax rates on the provision for deferred taxation are taken to
the profit and loss account if and to the extent that this
provision was originally formed as a charge to the profit and
loss accouat. '

NON-CONSOLIDATED AND MINORITY INTERESTS

The minority interest relates to the proportion of net income
attributable to third parties, based on their share in the share-
holders’ equity of the group company. Also included are the .
results from non-consolidated interests.

PRINCIPLES UNDERLYING
THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The cash flow from operating activities is calculated by the indirect
method, by adjusting the consolidated operating income for
exceptional items and expenses that are not cash flows (such as
amortization and depreciation), and for movements in )
consolidated working capital. Operating cash flows also include
the costs of financing of operating activities, income taxes paid
on all activities and spending on reorganization provisions.

CASH FLOW INVESTMENTS )

Cash flow investments are those arising from investments in
fixed assets, from the acquisition and divestment of subsidiaries
and business activities. Cash flows connected to spending of
provisions for reorganization/restructuring created by acquisition
of subsidiaries are also comprised. Cash and cash equivalents
available at the time of acquisition or divestment are deducted
from the related payments or proceeds.

CASH FLOW FINANCING ,
Cash flow financing includes the proceeds from issue and repay-
ments of equity and debt instruments. Cash flows from short-term
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financing are also included. Movements in share capital due to
stock dividend are not classified as cash flow.

. IFRS

The European Commission has stipulated that all listed
companies in the European Union member states are required to

.publish their consolidated annual accounts using IFRS as from
- January 1, 2005, Wolters Kluwer nv has commenced preparations
. for the implementation of IFRS. IFRS did and to some extent

still does differ in certain material aspects from the Dutch
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).
Five principal areas of difference have been identified: -

» employee benefits;

" P revenue recognition;

p intangible fixed assets;
¥ share-based compensation;
- financial instruments.

As a result of alignment between Dutch GAAP and IFRS,

“employee benefits and revenue recognition have been implemen-

ted in 2003. Intangible fixed assets, share-based compensation
and financial instruments are described below.

Implementation of IFRS might lead to a change in the manner
in which Wolters Kluwer accounts for its intangible fixed assets.
Intangible fixed assets (mostly goodwill and publishing rights) are
currently recorded in Wolters Kluwer’s balance sheet at historic
cost fess accumulated amortization. If and to the extent goodwill
is considered to be impaired in value, this is charged to the
profit and loss account. The proposed guideline from the
International Accounting Standards Board (Exposure Draft 3)
relating to intangible assets proposes that goodwill will no longer
be amortized. Periodic impairment reviews have to be performed,
in a manner similar to our current impairment procedure.
~ Wolters Kluwer already discloses information regarding
share-based compensation of employees. After implementation
of IFRS, the fair value of the options granted will be accounted
for as personnel cost.

The implementation of IFRS will lead to a change in the
manner in which the company accounts for financial instruments.
Financial instruments.are used by the group in the normal course
of business to hedge the effects on results of fluctuations in

. exchange rates and interest rates. As we are awaiting the

endorsement of the standards by the European Commission,
the impact of any changes cannot be quantified yet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 1 - BENCHMARK FIGURES

12002
Restated |-

Revenues 3,969

. Ordinary EBITA 763 |
Ordinary EBITA margin (%) 193 | &
Ordinary net income 442
Free cash flow \ 400
Cash conversion ratio' (CAR)- - - <0:94
Return On Invested Capital (ROIC) (%) - i 8.1 iR '
Net (interest bearing) debt? ’ ‘2,664“
Guarantee equity? © 2,00 |
Shareholders' equity to total assets (ratio) 021747%
Guarantee equity to total assets (ratio) 034
Diluted ordinary EPS (EUR) 150 | .

Diluted free cash-flow per share (EUR)

Wherever used in this report, the term ‘ordinary’ refers to
figures adjusted for exceptional items and-where applicable
amortization of intangible assets. These figures are non-GAAP
compliant financial figures, but are internally regarded as key
performance indicators to measure the underlying performance
of our base business. '

Cash conversion is defined as Cash fiow. from operations less net
expenditure on fixed assets (Gross Cash Flow) divided by ordinary
EBITA. )

Defined as: sum of total third-party loans, convertible bonds,
perpetual cumulative subordinated bonds, cash loans, minus cash
and cash equivalents and value at spot rates of forward exchange
and cross currency swap contracts. :
Defined as: sum of subordinated bonds, minority interests,
perpetual cumulative subordinated bonds and total shareholders’
equity. ’ -

[

w
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RECONCILIATION OF BENCHMARK FIGURES

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN OPERATING INCOME AND ORDINARY EBITA

Operating income . o o
Exceptional other income/results from divestments:
Amortization of intangible fixed assets

Exceptional restructuring expense

ORDINARY EBITA

RETURN ON INVESTED CAPITAL (ROIC)

ANNUAL REPORT 2003

Ordinary EBITA
Allocated tax (30%)

NET OPERATING PROFIT AFTER ALLOCATED TAX (NOPAT)

Average invested capital
ROIC (NOPAT/Average invested capital) (%)
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RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NET INCOME AND BENCHMARK ORDINARY NET INCOME

20020

" Restated -

Net income (A)
Amortization of intangible fixed assets

. Tax on amortization

Exceptional other income/results from divestments (after taxation)
Exceptional restructuring expense (after taxation)

382
415
L {48

ORDINARY NET INCOME (B)

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS AND FREE CASH FLOW

Cash flow from operating activities
Net expenditure fixed assets )
Appropriation of acquisition provisions )

FREE CASH FLOW (C)
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RECONCILIATION BETWEEN WEIGHTED AVERAGE'_NUMBER OF SHARES AND
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES DILUTED

IN MILLIONS OF SHARES

Weighted average number of shares (D) . %
Unsubordinated convertible bonds ‘
Stock options

Repurchased shares

DILUTED WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES (E)*

PER SHARE INFORMATION

Correction to income of 2.5% unsubortinated conveitible bonds
(net of taxes) on assumed conversion (F) (EUR.million)

Ordinary EPS (B:D) (EUR)
Diluted ordinary EPS (minimum of ordinary EPS and [(B+F):E]) (EUR)

EPSS (A:D) (EUR) :
Diluted EPS (minimum of EPS and [(A+F):E]) (EUR

Free cash flow per share (C:D) (EUR)
Diluted free cash flow per share (minimum of free cash flow
per share and [(C+F):E]) (EUR)

4 Stock options that are not in the money and related interest are
excluded from the diluted earnings per share calculation.

> Defined as: the profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent entity (the numerator) divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding (the denominator) during
the period.
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NOTE 2 - SEGMENT REPORTING

BUSINESS BY CLUSTERS 2003 AND 2002 (RESTATED) ' L7TB Europe 7B North America

SEGMENT REPORTING

2002

Restated

REVENUES v
. Exceptional other income/results from divestments

Costs of raw materials, subcontracted work.and other
external expenses -

Salaries and wages, social sécurity charges and pensions
Other operating expenses S

Depreciation '

Amortization of intangible fixed assets®

Exceptional réstructuring expense

' Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME
Amortization of'intangible fixed assets

Exceptional restructuring expense
Exceptional other income/results from divestments

1,229

ORDINARY EBITA

Total cluster capital employed at December 31
Net expenditure fixed assets

Cash flow from operations

Average number of FTE's

¢of which impairment charges

The company provides segment information in two formats.. - The secondary segment reporting format is geographically. Given

The primary segment reporting format is per cluster’. For the the alignment of the clusters with the geographical segments, the

segment reporting by cluster, the information for the activities that  information of total bock value of assets and net expenditures has
were divested in 2003 and activities that have been earmarked to not been presented separately as it can largely be derived from the

be divested, have been presented as ‘non-core’. Internal deliveries  primary segment reporting per cluster.
between the clusters have been eliminated.

7 The 2002 numbers have been restated in accordance with the
2003 organizational structure. '
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VV’TLTB‘IAE'a Pacific - .

Pt

Restated

3,969 |

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Revenues were generated in the following regions:
» Europe

» North America

» Asia Pacific

» Rest of the world

TOTAL
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NOTE 3 - ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTMENTS

290

020 “whse ! ’

Fixed assets

- Current assets

. Current liabilities
Long-term loans
Provisions

Acquisitions :

“Divestments

Lk

S (240)-

NET IDENTIFIABLE ASSETS AND. LIABILITIES

Goodwill on acquisitions

CONSIDERATION

- Cash acquired/(disposed df)
Net cash outflow/(inflow) upon completion-
Change in payable/receivable

ACQUISITION SPENDING/DIVESTMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

EXCEPTIONAL OTHER INCOME/RESULTS FROM DIVESTMENTS
In 2002, the results from divestments related to the divestments of
Kluwer Academic Publishers and Bohn Stafleu Van Loghum.

The proceeds from the sale of Kluwer Academic Publishers were
received in January 2003. In May 2003, ISBW was sold to Schouten
& Nelissen. In addition, a number of smaller assets were divested in
the course of 2003, notably the professional training assets of
Hawksmere in the United Kingdom, and the Public Law list of
Kluwer Law International.

ACQUISITIONS .

In 2003 Wolters Kluwer acquired eight businesses. Our cluster LTB
Europe was able to expand its position in Italy through the acquisition
of 33% of Cedam (one of the leading Italian legal publishing houses).
In LTB North America, the acquisition of Tymetrix (active in the area
of legal e-billing and matters management software to corporations)
contributes to our activities in the area of legal information services.
The Education cluster strengthened its position in Germany through
the acquisition of digital spirit (providing e-learning solutions).

WOLTERS KLUWER

: 6
1347 (47
L36) . 1344
.
A1) 5 . .6
(28) 64 |
324 .

- 296
’ 10 ' o o)
306} . (635)°

.48
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NOTE 4 - SALARIES, WAGES, SOCIAL SECURITY CHARGES AND PENSIONS

SALARIES . AND WAGES

Salaries and wages

ANNUAL REPORT 2003

The average number of employees, expressed in fuill-time equivalents, in 2003 is 19,540
(2002: 20,284). For personnel related exceptional cost; see note 7.

SOCIAL SECURITY CHARGES AND PENSIONS

NOTE 5

Social security charges
Pension expenses
Other personnel expenses

- DEPRECIATION

DEPRECIATION

Intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
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NOTE 6 - AMORTIZATICN OF INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

AMORTIZATION OF INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS “ 2002
Amortization goodwill and publishing rights 328
impairments 87

See note 2 for detail by cluster. 415.

NOTE 7 - EXCEPTIONAL RESTRUCTURING EXPENSE

EXCEPTIONAL RESTRUCTURING EXPENSE

Personne! related restructuring costs
Onerous contracts ' '

As a result of the strategic update as announced on October 30, 2003 a restructuring
program has been initiated. The 2003 charge to exceptional expense fully relates to this
restructuring program. ~ ' .

The personnel related restructuring costs mainly relate to severance payments.

The onerous contracts mainly relate to lease commitments of vacant offices due to the
integration of businesses.

NOTE 8 - FINANCING RESULTS -

FINANCING RESULTS

Interest income
Interest expense
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NOTE 9 - TAXATION ON INCOME

TAXATION ON INCOME

Movements in overall tax position:

POSITION AS AT JANUARY 1
Current tax liability

Provision for deferred taxation
Deferred tax assets

OVERALL TAX POSITION -

MOVEMENTS

Total taxation on income
Acquisitions/divestments

Tax payments '

Exchange differences and other movements

TOTAL MOVEMENTS

POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31
Current tax liability
Provision for deferred taxation
Deferred tax assets

OVERALL TAX POSITION

Reconciliation from the normative to the actual taxation on income is as follows:

Normative taxation on income

Tax effect of:

Non tax-deductible intangible fixed assets
Financing activities .

Utilization of tax losses carry forward
Exempt income and non-deductible expenses
Tax exemption on results from divestments
Tax incentives and other

Taxation on income

Wolters Kluwer has applied the CFA regime as from 1999 and based on the EC decision
of February 18, 2003 regarding a state aid investigation against the CFA regime, Wolters
Kluwer is of the opinion that this regime can be applied until December 31, 2008.
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NOTE 10 - NON-CONSOLIDATED AND MINORITY INTERESTS

NON-CONSOLIDATED AND MINORITY INTERESTS

Results non-consolidated participating interests
Minority interest of consolidated participations

The most important non-consolidated participating interests as at December 31, 2003 were:

> Boekhandels Groep Nederiand (The Netherlands, Deventer)
» Manz lura,”Manz Sphulbuch (Austria, Vienna)

33% ownerschip
40% ownerschip

Wolters Kluwet's share in the most important consolidated participations that are not fully owned as at December 31, 2003 were:

» Ipsoa/F. Lefebvre ; (Italvy, Milan)
» Akadémiai (Hungary, Budapest)
» Cedam (ltaly, Padova)'

NOTE 11 - INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

POSITION AS AT JANUARY 1
Purchase value
Amortization, depreciation and impairments -

BOOK VALUE AS AT JANUARY 1v

MOVEMENTS
Investments
Acquisitions
Divestments

NET EXPENDITURES

Amortization and depreciation
impairments
Exchange differences and other movements

TOTAL MOVEMENTS

POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31
Purchase value
Amortization, depreciation and impairments

BOOK VALUE AS AT DECEMBER 31

WOLTERS KLUWER

50% ownerschip
74% ownerschip
33% ownerschip

2002

(1362

4,715
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NOTE 12 - TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

POSITION AS AT JANUARY 1
Purchase value
Depreciation

BOOK VALUE AS AT JANUARY 1

MOVEMENTS
Investments
Acquisitions
Divestments

NET EXPENDITURES

Depreciation
Exchange differences and other movements

TOTAL MOVEMENTS

POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31
Purchase value
Depreciation

BOOK VALUE AS AT DECEMBER 31

NOTE 13 - FINANCIAL FIXED ASSETS

FINANCIAL FIXED ASSETS

POSITION AS AT JANUARY 1

Impairments of non-consolidated participating interests
Divestments of non-consolidated participating interests
Other movements

POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31
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NOTE 14 - INVENTORIES

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished products and trade goods

As at December 31, 2003 the provision for obsolescence dedﬁcted from
inventory book values totaled EUR 71 million (2002: EUR 80 million).

NOTE 15 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

200240

’ Restated

Trade receivables

Deferred tax assets

Prepayments :

Receivables resulting from divestment Kluwer Academic Publishers
Tax receivable

Value at spot rates of forward exchange contracts

Other receivables '

As at December 31, 2003 the provision for doubtful accounts amounted to
EUR 47 million (2002: EUR 55 million). : .
The deferred tax assets include EUR 197 million (2002: EUR 160 million)
due in more than one year.

The value at spot rates of forward exchange contracts includes

EUR 219 million due in more than one year (2002: EUR 126 million).
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NOTE 16 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2002

Deposits : 230

Cash and bank balances . 63
293

NOTE 17 - OTHER CURRENT LIABELET!ES .

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Subordinated bonds

Salaries, holiday allowances

Royalties payable

Other liabilities and accruals

Social security premiums and other taxation
Interest payable
Reorganization/restructuring commitments
Acquisition payments
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NOTE 18 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

LONG-TERM LOANS

Subordinated convertible staff bonds
Subordinated bonds

Bonds

Unsubordinated convertible bonds
Perpetual cumulative subordinated bonds
Other loans from credit institutions

" LONG-TERM LOANS

Short-term loans

Minus: :

Cash.and cash equivalents

Value at spot rates of forward exchange contracts

NET (INTEREST BEARING) DEBT

BREAKDOWN. OF LONG-TERM LOANS

Subordinated convertible staff bonds 2000-2005
Subordinated convertible staff bonds 2002-2007
Subordinated bonds 1998-2005 ‘
Subordinated bonds 1997-2007

Bonds 2000-2005 ’

Bonds 1999-2006

Bonds 1998-2008

Bonds 2003-2014

Unsubordinated convertible bonds 2001-2006
Perpetual cumulative subordinated. bonds
Multicurrency roll-over facility 1998-2005

Cther loans
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LOAN MATURITY .
The following amounts of loans as of December 31, 2003 are due
within and after five years: ‘ '

AMOUNTS

LOAN MATURITY
IN MILLIONS OF EUROS

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

DUE AFTER 2008

CAPITAL MARKET TRANSACTIONS
On October 30, 2003, Wolters Kluwer announced a series

of capital market transactions. Wolters Kluwer made a public
- offer on the following outstanding bonds; EUR 550 million,
6.125% bonds 2000 due 2005 and EUR 750 million, 5.50%
bonds 1999 due 2006 as well as a public offer on its outstanding
EUR 700 million, 1.00% convertible unsubordinated bond 2001
due 2006, . '

The purpose of the public offers was to efficiently utilize
cash and prudently reduce the quantity of debt maturing in 2005
and 2006, to extend Wolters Kluwer’s maturity profile, and to
raise cost effective longer-term funding,

Wolters Kluwer repurchased in total EUR 1,126 million of its
outstanding bonds:

» EUR 380 million of the 6.125% bonds due 2005,
now outstanding is EUR 170 million;

» EUR 536 million of the 5.50% bonds due 2006,
now outstanding is EUR 215 million;

» EUR 210 million of 1.00% convertible bonds due 2006,
now outstanding is EUR 490 million.

The costs of the tender, amounting to EUR 61 million, resulting
from the trading of the bonds above par, are offset by the result
(approximately EUR 58 million) on unwound related derivative
instruments (interest rate and cross currency interest rate swaps).
On November 19, 2003, Wolters Kluwer issued unsubor-
dinated bonds due 2014 with a nominal value of EUR 700 million.
The coupon on the bonds is 5.125% with an issue price of
99.618%. The proceeds from this bond issue were used to
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partly refinance the aforementioned tender offer as well as for
general corporate purposes.

During 2002, Wolters Kluwer did not issue any debt
instruments. In 2001, Wolters Kluwer issued two bonds for a
total amount of EUR 925 million, as follows:

On May 14, 2001, a perpetual cumulative subordinated bond
loan with a nominal value of EUR 225 million was issued. The
issue price of the bonds was 100%. These bonds bear interest at
6.875%. Wolters Kluwer has the right to redeem the loan as per
May 2008. Wolters Kluwer is allowed to refrain from paying
interest if there is not declared or made available any dividend
for payment. The accrued interest will be paid in a subseguent
year where there is dividend declared and paid. In case of
bankruptcy, Wolters Kluwer has no obligation to pay any accrued

" interest, the nominal amounts of the bond will then become

a subordinated liability. The proceeds from this bond issue’
were used to refinance bank facilities, as well as for general
corporate purposes. :

On November 30, 2001, a convertible (unsubordinated)
bond loan with a nominal value of EUR 700 million was issued.

" The conversion price was fixed at EUR 31.00 per depositary

receipt issued for one ordinary share of Wolters Kluwer. The
issue price of the bonds was 100%. The coupon was set at
1.00% per annum. The yield to maturity was set at 2.50%, and
the bonds will be redeemed at 107.88% of their principal
amount on the maturity date (November 30, 2006), unless
previously redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled.
The convertible bonds will at any moment be valued against
the accreted principal while the corresponding coupon costs
and accrued redemption premium are charged to the profit
and loss account. The issuing costs are capitalized and
amortized over 5 years. The proceeds from this bond issue
were used to refinance bank facilities, as well as for gefmeral
corporate purposes. ’ '

Besides the cumulative subordinated perpetual bond loan,
Wolters Kluwer has outstanding subordinated bonds of
EUR 408 million due 2005 (NLG 400 million) and 2007
(NLG 500 million). Both bonds define that subordinated

obligations of the company rank pari passu without any

‘preference among themselves and with all other present and

future equally subordinated obligations of the company.

The company has access to unused credit facilities of
approximately EUR 655 million. Of this amount, approximately
EUR 484 million is fully committed. These credit facilities and
cash and cash equivalents (EUR 404 million) significantly reduce
the liquidity risk of the company. No property has been
collateralized or in any other way secured under these contracts.
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Due to the high volatility (fna'mljr caused by the Iraq war) of
the U.S. dollar against the euro in the beginning of 2003,

. Wolters Kluwer decided to enhance the U.S. dollar balance .

sheet cover temporarily to approximately 60% via a string of
forward exchange contracts with multiple maturity-dates. In-
June, Wolters Kluwer reduced the balance sheet cover by
reversing the U.S. dollar forwards. The realized cash flow gain
from these reversed U.S. dollar forwards is approximately

EUR 209 million (2003: EUR 23 million; 2004: EUR 29 million;
2005: EUR 99 million; 2006: EUR 58 million). The company
has currently U.S. dollar forward contracts for a total nominal
amount of EUR 595 million (U.S. dollar 751.million) outstanding,

which represents an U.S. dollar balance sheet cover of approxi-
mately 26% (2002: approximately 35%). The carrying value of

‘these forward exchange contracts amounts to EUR 252 million.

The value of forward contracts mitigates the loss on equity,
resulting from a deteriorating U.S. dollar over 2003.

The fair value of outstanding long-term loans at the balance
sheet date can devidte from the value, at which they have
been recorded in the balance sheet. The fair value of swaps,
which Wolters Kluwer uses to hedge the exchange rate and
interest risks (cross currency swaps and interest rate swaps) and
the forward contracts have been included in the table below.

v -

MARKET VALUE OF LONG-TERM LOANS, SWAPS
AND FORWARD EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

DECEMBER 31, 2002,

Long-term loans

Unsubordinated convertible bonds
Perpetual cumulative subordinated bonds
Interest rate swaps

Forward exchange contracts

8 Carrying value is defined as book value including accrued
interest less the capitalized portion of the issuing costs.

' Carryiﬁg ER
~ value

2,013)
C(703)
@] -

" 149 |
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NOTE 19 - PROVISIONS RRRE &

PROVISIONS

Provision for pensions

Other post employment obligations .
Reorganization/restructuring commitments
Deferred taxation

The short-term commitments relating to expected spending due . -
within one year are presented under other current liabilities.

PROVISION FOR PENSIONS

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

The following weighted average actuarial assumptions were
employed to determine the net periodic pension and post
retirement plans’ expense and the defined benefit obligations:

ANNUAL REPORT 2003

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

PENSION SCHEMES (%)
Discount rate

Expected return on assets
Average increase salaries

POST RETIREMENT MEDICAL PLANS (%)
Discount rate

Medical trend rate

The average increase in salaries is based on the non-closed
pension plans.
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PLAN LIABILITIES AND ASSETS

PLAN LIABILITIES

Fair value as at January 1

' Service costs

. Interest costs
Benefits paid
Actuarial (gain) or loss
Employee contributions
Exchange rate gain or (loss)-
Other ’ .

FAIR VALUE AS AT DECEMBER 31

PLAN ASSETS

Fair value as at January 1
Return on plan assets
Benefits paid by fund
Employer contribution-
Employee contribution
Exchange rate gain or (loss)
Other

FAIR VALUE AS AT DECEMBER 31

FUNDED STATUS

Funded status as at December 31
Unrecognized net gain or (loss)®

NET LIABILITY AS AT DECEMBER 31

COSTS

Service costs
Interest costs
Expected return on assets

TOTAL COSTS

¥ The actuarial loss as at December 31, 2002 has been charged to equity
(EUR 80 million, corresponding with EUR 58 million after taxation).
Subsequently the 2002 figures have been restated. :
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PROVISION FOR REORGANIZATION/RESTRUCTURING COMMITMENTS

Position as at January 1
Add: short-term commitments

TOTAL AS AT JANUARY 1

MOVEMENTS" ‘ o
Addition charged as exceptional restructuring expense.
Addition charged to ordinary operating result
Addition in respect of acquisitions

TOTAL ADDITIONS

Appropriation of acquisition provisions

Appropriation of exceptional reorganization: provisions
Appropriation of reorganization provisions

Exchange differences and other movements

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

Total as at December 31
Less: short-term commitments

POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31
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NOTE 20 - SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

" POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2001 (AS REPORTED)

Restatements opening balance:

» RJ 270 Revenue recognition

» RJ 271 Employee benefits

» RJ 160 Declared dividend 2001

POSITION AS AT JANUARY 1, 2002 (RESTATED)

Cash dividend 2001
Exercise of stock options
Translation differences
Repurchased shares
Earnings 2002

Other movements

POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2002 (RESTATED)

POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2002 (AS REPORTED)

Restatements opening balance:

» RJ 270 Revenue recognition

» RJ 271 Employee benefits

» RJ 160 Declared dividend 2002

POSITION AS AT JANUARY 1, 2003 (RESTATED)

Cash dividend 2002
Stock dividend 2002
Translation differences
Repurchased shares
Earnings 2003'°
Other movements

POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2003

'C The charge of the loss to other reserves is subject to the
approval of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
per the Articles of Association. ’
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SHARE CAPITAL . : ‘ : ‘as per the balance sheet date, 3.2 million repurchased shares in

The authorized capital amounts to EUR 143.04 million consisting . stock.
of EUR 71.52 million ordinary shares (nominal value EUR 0.12) Depositary receipts had been issued for 96.8% of the issued

and EUR 71.52 million preference shares. The issued share capital | ordinary share capital (282.7 million shares).
consists of ordinary shares. : ‘

The number of issued ordinary shares increased from ~ DIVIDENDS
285.4 million to 292.1 million as a result of stock dividend. Of the 2002 dividend 48.4% was distributed as cash dividend-
To cover the dilutive effect of stock options the company has, (2001: 61.7%). '

NOTE 21 - SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

As at December 31, 2003 options were outétanding for'9.8 million:
(depositary receipts of) ordinary shares Wolters Kluwer.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

End of exercise period

Initial number of options
Exercise rate (average) (EUR)

Number of options outstanding as
at January 1

MOVEMENTS

Options granted

Options expired/eliminated
Options exercised

NUMBER OF OPTIONS
OUTSTANDING AS AT DECEMBER 31

To members of the Executive Board and approximately 600 Options are granted at fair market value at the date of grant.
managers within the company a stock option plan applies. Every option entitles the holder to purchase one share each,
The purpose of this plan is to align the interests of management  for the share price on the date at which the option is granted.
with those of shareholders by providing additional incentives to The exercise period starts at least two years after the date the
improve the performance of Wolters Kluwer on a long-term basis. . options are granted until five years maximum, or in some cases
six years. For options granted after August 2002 the maturity
period is seven years after the grant date. Wolters Kluwer may

' The French option plans of 2001 and 2002 expire in purchase shares for the estimared number of options that will be
2007 and 2008, respectively. All option plans as of ) exercised
August 2002 have an expiration period of seven years. X '
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Wolters Kluwer accounts for stock options using the intriﬁsic
value method. Accordingly, no compensation costs have been
recorded for the options granted. =

In late 2003, a new strategic vision was announced that focuses
on value creation. As a result new incentive plans for Executive
Board members (and senior executives) are in the process‘of
being implemented, to align compensation with value creation.
Under the new plan, stock options will cease to be granted.
Instead, performance shares will be awarded to Executive Board
members, subject to the approval of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders and to senior executives, based on the achievement
of predefined targets. ’ .

The fair value of the 2003 option grants was estimated using the Black-Scholes options pricing model and the following assumptions:

PRO FORMA OPTION VALUE INFORMATION

Granted number (millions)

Exercise rate (EUR)
Fair value (EUR)
Fair value (EUR million)

VALUATION ASSUMPTIONS

Expected option term

Expected volatility (%)
Expected dividend yield (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%)

The assumptions were used for these calculations only and
do not represent an indication of expectations of future
developments.

Since the Wolters Kluwer employee stock options are not
tradable on a stock market, option holders can receive no value
nor derive any benefit from holding these stock options, .
without an increase in the market price of the Wolters Kluwer
stock. Such an increase in price would benefit all shareholders
proportionally. ;

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for
use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which have

no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition,
option valuation models require the input of highly subjective
assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility.
Wolters Kluwer employee stock options have characteristics
different from those of traded options. In addition, changes
in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the
fair value estimates. Therefore, management believes that

the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single
measute of the fair value of the employee stock options.
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NOTE 22 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at December 31, 2003 annual commitments under rental
and operational lease agreements amounted to EUR 83 million
(2002: EUR 79 million). The average term of these commitments
is approximately 5.8 years (2002: 6.0 years). ol
Pursuant to section 403 of the Dutch Civil Code, Book 2
the company has assumed joint and several liability for the
debts arising out of the legal acts of a number of subsidiaries.'
The relevant declarations have been filed with and are open
for inspection at the Trade Register for the district in which
the legal entity, in respect of which liability has been assumed,
has its registered office.
The company has issued formal guarantees for bank credlt
facilities for a total amount of EUR 49 million -

NOTE 23 - AUDIT FEES

ANNUAL REPORT 2003

(2002: EUR 54 million), on behalf of a number of
its foreign subsidiaries. As at December 31, 2003
EUR 0.5 million of these credit facilities had been
utilized.

Per December 31, 2003 other bank guarantees were
issued, at the request of Wolters Kluwer or subsidiaries,
for a total amount of EUR 7.8 million (2002:

EUR 7.4 million). These guarantees mainly relate to rent
for real estate.

In addition, the company forms part of a Dutch
fiscal entity, and pursuant to standard conditions has

. assumed joint and several liability for the tax liabilities

of the fiscal entity.

The aggregate fees billed by our auditor KPMG for professional services rendered in 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

AUDIT FEES

Audit fees
Audit-related fees
Tax fees

Other fees

Audit fees consist of fees for the audit of both the consolidated
financial statements and local statutory financial statements.
Audit-related fees primarily consist of fees in connection with
acquisitions and divestments, attest services not required by statute
or regulation and accounting related advice {for example IFRS).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 24 - REMUNERATION OF THE EXECUTWEBOARD AND SUPERVISORY BOARD

For details on the company’s remuneration policy, please see the
report from the Remuneration Committee of the Supervisory Board

in this Annual Report.

STOCK OPTIONS
- EXECUTIVE
BOARD MEMBERS

N. McKinstry -
Chairman

B.L.J.M. Beerkens

JM. Detailleur

R. Pieterse?

H.. Yarrirngton

As at balance sheet date,

Mr. J.M. Detailleur and

Mr. HJ. Yarrington own 772
and 404 (depositary receipts of)
otdinaty shares, respectively.
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REMUNERATION EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS | L The 2003 bonus scheme is based on ordinary net income
The selection and remuneration committee of the Supervisory (at constant currencies), at target 70% {maximum: 90%) of the
Board sets the remuneration policies for members of the - . base salary. The 2004 bonus scheme is based on free cash flow.
Executive Board, based on external reference information of Base salaries for 2004 remained constant compared to
major Dutch, other European and US based companies with a - December 2003. ‘

size and nature comparable to Wolters Kluwer.

REMUNERATION EXECUTIVE BOARD‘
MEMBERS

2002
.Total

IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS

N. McKinstry, Chairman
B.L.J.M. Beerkens'®
J.M. Detailleur

R. Pieterse'?

H.J. Yarrington

TOTAL

REMUNERATION SUPERVISORY BOARD
MEMBERS

s

mune;
mmitt

IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS

_H. de Ruiter, Chairman

JVM. Pennings, Deputy Chairman
A. Baan

AlJ. Frost

K.AALM. Van Miert

A.H.C.M. Walravens?®

N.J. Westdijk

TOTAL

The Supervisory Board members do not have investments in Wolters Kluwer nv.

12 Mr. Pieterse resigned as Chairman of the Executive Board per September 1, 2003. According to his resignation agreement,
he is entitled to receive a full year bonus over 2003, his salary until Mdy 2004 and 40,000 stock options in 2004.
Bonuses actually paid, that relate to the level of performance achieved in the previous year.

Pensions represent pension premiums and similar obligations actually paid.

Includes an allowance for relocation and related expenses.

16 Remuneration relates to period May 1, 2003 through December 31, 2003.

7 Includes a premium to compensate for under-accrued pension liabilities in previous years.

8 Mr. Walravens resigned in April 2003.

13
14
15
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF WOLT‘ERS KLUWER NV

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT WOLTERS KLUWER NV

Results subsidiaries after tax/other net income

NET INCOME

BALANCE SHEET WOLTERS KLUWER NV (BEFdRE APPROPRIATION OF PROFITS)

CAPITAL EMPLOYED

FIXED ASSETS
Intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Financial fixed assets

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Accounts receivable
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

WORKING CAPITAL

CAPITAL EMPLOYED

FINANCING

94

Subordinated bonds

Bonds )

Unsubordinated convertible bonds
Perpetual cumulative subordinated bonds

Total long-term liabilities
Provisions
Shareholders’ equity (Note 20)

TOTAL FINANCING

WOLTERS KLUWER

2002
Restated
382
382,
2002
2 2 :
4,254 |
507
214
721
(768)
47y
. 4,207
410
1,527
. 700
225
2,862
67
1,278
4,207




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF WOLTERS KLUWER NV

FINANCIAL FIXED ASSETS
Net asset value of subsidiaries as at Januafy 1

Movements related to results .

Movements related to revaluations and exchange differences
Movements related to dividend payments ‘ ‘

Net asset value of subsidiaries as at Decemb‘ér§31 .
Long-term receivables from subsidiaries

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Debts to subsidiaries
Bankers

Other liabilities
Corporate taxation

PROVISIONS
Provisions for deferred taxation

Provision for pensions

Provisions for reorganization/restructuring commitments

The above provisions are mainly long-term of nature.
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OTHER INFORMATION
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

INTRODUCTION )
We have audited the financial statements of Wolters Kluwer nv
for the year 2003. These financial statements are the responsi-
bility of the company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on

our audit.

SCOPE

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing staridards
generally accepted in the Nethetlands. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

" about whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting

_principles used and significant estimates made by management,

as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. '

o

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements-give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the company as at December 31,.2003
and of the result for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the Nethetlands and

comply with the financial reporting requirements included in
Tite 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. ‘

Amsterdam, March 5, 2004
KPMG Accountants nv
APPROPRIATION OF NET INCOME (LOSS)

ARTICLE 28 OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION:

» Paragraph 1. From the profit as it appears from the annual
accounts adopted by the General Meeting, a dividend shall be
distributed on the preference shares, whose percentage is equal
to that of the average of the interest rate on basic refinancing
transactions of the European Central Bank - weighted according
to the number of days on which this interest rate applied
- during the financial year or part of the financial year for
which the dividend is distributed, increased by three.

The dividend on the last-mentioned preference shares shall be
calculated on an annual basis on the paid:-up part of the

nominal amount. If in any year the profit shall not be sufficient
thereto, from the profit of any succeeding year the deficient
dividend shall first be distributed, prior to any further
distribution of profit. No further dividend shall be distributed
on the preference shares.

B Paragraph 2. Subsequently such allocations to reserves shall
be made as the Executive Board shall determine, subject to
the approval of the Supervisory Board.

B Paragraph 3. Any balance remaining after that shall be
distributed as dividend on the ordinary shares.

¥ Paragraph 5. Distribution of profit shall be made after
adoption of the annual accounts showing that it is permitted.

» Paragraph 7. If a loss is suffered for any year that loss shall
be transferred to a new account for set-off against future
profits and for that year no dividend shall be distributed. On
“the proposal of the Executive Board that has been approved
by the Supervisory Board, the General Meeting may resolve,
however, to wipe off such a loss by writing it off on a reserve
that need not be maintained according to the law.

ARTICLE 29.2 é)F THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION:

On the proposal of the Executive Board that has been approved
by the Supervisory Board the General Meeting may resolve on
distributions in money or in the manner as referred to in
Paragraph 1 to holders of ordinary shares in the capital of the
company or their depositary receipts.

PROPOSED CASH DISTRIBUTION

IN MILLIONS OF EUROS

Proposed cash distribution

As stated in note 2, a proposed cash distribution or dividend
is no longer presented under short-term liabilities in the
balance sheet but remains part of equity until approved by
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. Pursuant to
Article 29 of the Articles of Association, and with the approval
of the Supervisory Board, a proposal will be submitted to
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to make a
distribution in cash of EUR 0.55 per share or shares (at a

ratio to be determined and announced on

April 29, 2004).
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RECONCILIATION FROM OLD ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES TO RESTATED CONSOLIDATED PROFIT
AND LOSS ACCOUNT 2002 AND THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET PER DECEMBER 31, 2002

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 2002

REVENUES
Exceptional other income/results from- divestments-

Costs of raw materials, subcontracted work and

other external expenses ‘

Salaries and wages, social security charges and pensions
Depreciation '
Amortization of intangible fixed assets .

Other operating expenses ‘

Exceptional pension item

Operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME

Amortization of intangible fixed assets
Financing results

Income before taxation
Taxation on income

income after taxation

Non-consolidated and minority interests
Results on divestments (before taxation)
Taxation on results on divestments

NET INCOME
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OTHER INFORMATION

CONQOUDATED BALANCE SHEET AT DECEM‘BER‘31,k2062’

CAPITAL EMPLOYED

FIXED ASSETS ‘

Intangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets - L
Financial fixed assets

"TOTAL FIXED ASSETS -

CURRENT ASSETS -
Inventories

Accounts receivable

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

 CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred income
Trade creditors
Other current liabilities

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

WORKING CAPITAL

CAPITAL EMPLOYED

98 WOLTERS KLUWER



FINANCING

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Subordinated bonds

Bonds

Loans from credit institutions
Unsubordinated convertible bonds
Perpetual cumulative subordinated bonds

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES . -
PROVISIONS
MINORITY INTERESTS

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Issued share capital

Share premium reserve

Non distributable reserve for translation differences
Other reserves i

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

TOTAL FINANCING
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OTHER INFORMATION

RECONCILIATION FROM NEW ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES TO PRO FORMA OLD ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 2003

Revenues .
- Exceptional other income/results from divestments

Costs of raw materials, subcontracted work and other
_external expenses _

Salaries and wages, social security charges and pensions
Cther operating expenses ‘ » )
Depreciation ~

Amortization of intangible fixed assets

Exceptional restructuring expense

Operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME

Financing results

Income before taxation

Taxation on income

Income after taxation

Non-consolidated and minority interests

NET INCOME
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KEY FIGURES

Only the 2002 figures have been restated 1o reflect the new accounting principles adopted in 2003.

1895 | 1994

Revenues 1958) 133611241
EBITDA a72| 3031 271
EBITA 421 <2764 (247
Ordinary net income ‘ s
Net income 12177
(Proposed) Dividend/cash distribution L
Dividend propoéal in % of ordinary net income S
Pay-out in % of net income 354
Free cash fiow

" Cash conversion. (ratio)
Shareholders’ equity 541 |2
Guarantee equity?°® 1731} 3331 275
Net (interest bearing) debt?’ L1384 Tp ‘
Capital employed 2441] 3911 . -329
Total assets 3061
Amortization of intangible fixed assets 30
Net investments fixed assets 51
Depreciation of fixed assets 51] 2
RATIOS (%)
Growth percentages of: Ey
Revenues 4661
Ordinary EBITDA 55.7
Ordinary EBITA 52.4
Ordinary net income : -
Net income .59
As % of revenues: N T
Ordinary EBITDA 244 |-
Ordinary EBITA margin 215
Crdinary net income .
Net income 111
ROIC )
Net interest coverage?? 56
Net gearing?? 25
Shareholders’ equity to capital employed 0.25 0.85;: 08
Guarantee equity to total assets 0.24
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INFORMATION PER SHARE (EUR)

On the basis of 'fully diluted":
Diluted ordinary earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Diluted free cash flow per share

Weighted average number of shares; fully diluted

(x million)

Ordinary earnings per share
-Earnings per share

Free cash flow per share
Dividend/cash distribution per share

Weighted average number of shares issued
(x million) '

STOCK EXCHANGE QUOTATIONS (EUR)
highest quotation

lowest quotation

quotation as at December 31

Average daily trading volume Wolters Kluwer
on Euronext Amsterdam nv number of shares
(x 1,000}

EMPLOYEES
Headcount as at December 31

In full time equivalents as at December 31
In full time equivalents, average per annum

9 2002 Figures have been restated with the exception of growth

percentages.

20 Defined as: sum of shareholders' equity, subordinated (convertible)
bonds, perpetual cumulative bonds and minority interests,

Defined as: sum of long-term loans, unsubordinated convertible
bonds, perpetual cumulative subordinated bonds, cash loans minus
cash and cash equivalents and value of related swaps and forward

21

exchange contracts.

22 Ratio between operating income before amortization: of intangible
assets and exceptional items (ordinary EBITA), against net interest costs.
Defined as: net (interest bearing) debt as % of shareholders' equity.

2
2

> W

Proposed dividend/cash distribution per share.

1995 |

114948
3| 14,010
113768

0l 2664

. 076

: v:322‘69'5‘1

I 077
077

.8,993

076

025}

1132 K

8,369 ]
$ 8523
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INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

CAPITAL STOCK

The ordinary shares have a nominal value of EUR 0.12. The .
number of ordinary shares issued amounted to 292,051,797 on
December 31, 2003 (2002: 285,429,505). The weighted average
number of fully diluted ordinary shares used to compute the
fully diluted per share figures was 309.3 million (2002: 306,2
million). Qut of the money stock options are not included in this
number. If these stock options are however taken into account,
the total weighted average number of fully diluted shares was
318,7 million (2002: 314,6 million). :

MARKET CAPITALIZATION ON DECEMBER 31,‘2003
On the basis of ordinary shares issued: EUR 3.6 billion {2002:
" EUR 4.7 billion).

LISTING OF CAPITAL STOCK

Amsterdam (Euronext Amsterdam: WLSNC.AS, stock code
39588, ISIN code NL0000395887), and Frankfurt: depositary
receipts for Wolters Kluwer ordinary shares. USA (over-the-
counter, WTKWY, CUSIP No. 977874 20 5): American
Depositary Receipts. : :

ADR TRUST OFFICE .

Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York
60 Wall Street

New York, NY 10260

United States

OTHER WOLTERS KLUWER SECURITIES

Wolters Kluwer Bonds listed in Amsterdam:

P 6.250% subordinated bonds, 1997/2007, NLG 500 million
(EUR 226 million) issued and outstanding (ISIN code
XS0076781425) o

» 5.250% senior bonds, 1998/2008, NLG 500 million (EUR
227 million) (ISIN code NL0000121911) ‘

> 5.125% subordinated bonds, 1998/2005, NLG 400 million
(EUR 182 million) issued and outstanding (ISIN code
XS0092962710) : .

» 6.875% perpetual cumulative subordinated bonds 2001
EUR 225 million issued and outstanding (ISIN code
NL0000119105)

Wolters Kluwer Convertible Bond listed in Amsterdam:

» 1.000% convertible unsubordinated bonds, 2001/2006,
EUR 700 million issued; EUR 490 million outstanding
(ISIN NL0000119634)

Wolters Kluwer Bonds listed in Amsterdam and Luxembourg:

" P 5.500% senior bonds, 1999/2006, EUR 750 million issued;

EUR 214 million outstanding (ISIN code X50101766110)
B 6.125% senior bonds, 200072005, EUR 550 million issued;
EUR 170 million outstanding (ISIN code XS0121316235)
P 5.125% senior bonds, 2003/2014, EUR 700 million issued
and outstanding (ISIN code XS0181273342)

GEOGRAPHICAL SPREAD OF SHAREHOLDERS

Institutional investors hold the majority (76%) of the shares in
Wolters Kluwer, With over 500 institutional investors in 25
countries, ownership is international in make-up. Investors in
North America had an interest of 35% in the Company in 2003
(2002: 46%), while European shareholders held an interest of -
62% (2002: 54%). Below is a table showing the geographical
spread of shareholders in approximate percentages on
December 31, 2003, compared to the previous year.

North America

Thé Netherlands

The United Kingdom
Belgium/Luxembourg
Switzerland

France

Scandinavia
Germany

Other

TOTAL
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SHAREHOLDINGS EXCEEDING 5%

In accordance with the Major Holdings in Listed Companies

Disclosure Act (WMZ): o

» Internationale Nederlanden Groep nv: 9.4%, disclosed on
February 28, 1992. i

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2004 )
The investor relations program will be based around the
following key events:

April 6 Publication of Annual Report 2003

April 21 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

April 27 Corporate & Financial Services Division Analyst
& Investor Day ‘ '

May 13 - First-quarter Results 2004

August 10 Half-year Results 2004
November 17 Third-quarter Results 2004
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REPORT OF THE TRUSTEE
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EUR 700,000,000 1% CONVERTIBLE UNSUBORDINATED
BONDS 2001 DUE 2006 OF WOLTERS KLUWER NV
In compliance with the provisions of III, article 2 of the trust
deed executed before Mr. CJ. Groffen, civil-law notary practi-
cing in Amsterdam, on November 30, 2001, we report as follows.
Unless previously purchased, redeemed or converted as provided
in the trust deed, the bonds will be redeemed at 107.88% of their

principal amount on November 30, 2006. As of January 10, 2002,

up to and including November 16, 2006, the bonds are converti-
ble into depositary receipts, each issued for one ordinary Wolters
Kluwer nv share, at a current conversion price of EUR 31.00.
On November 7, 2003, Wolters Kluwer nv announced a cash
offer on the outstanding bonds in which it invited bondholders,

" to tender their bonds in a way specified in an Information

Memorandum of the same date. The purchase price for the
bonds has been determined at EUR 1,012.50 per EUR 1,000
principal amount of bonds. As a result of this tender, Wolters
Kluwer nv has purchased EUR 209,967,000 in aggregate princi-
pal amount of bonds. These bonds have all been canceled.

On December 31, 2003, the outstanding amount of the
bonds was EUR 490,033,000. . o

In compliance with I, article 9 of the trust deed, a sufficient
stock of depositary receipts has been deposited with the Trustee
as is needed to enable complete conversion of all the bonds in issue.

Wolters Kluwer nv is authorized to redeem all of the bonds

outstanding: '

1. After December 14, 2004, provided that, within a period of
thirty consecutive trading days, the closing price of depositary
receipts of Wolters Kluwer nv on Euronext Amsterdam for
twenty trading days shall have been at least 130% of the then
applicable conversion price;

2. 1f 85% of the bonds originally issued have been converted or
purchased.

In the event of a “Change of Control”, referred to in I, article
4.g, 5.c and 17 of the trust deed, Wolters Kluwer nv will fix a
date for early redemption of the bonds and notify the bondhol-
ders of such date and at the discretion of the bondholders
redeem the bonds on the date fixed for redemption at its accre-
ted principal amount on such date as stipulated in I, article 5 of
the trust deed, together with interest accrued to such date.

Amsterdam, March 5, 2004

N.V. Algemeen Nederlands Trustkantoor ANT
LJJ.M Lutz, Director
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CONTACT DETAILS

WOLTERS KLUWER NV
Apollolaan 153

P.O. Box 75248

NL 1070 AE Amsterdam
The Netherlands

T +31 20 6070 400

F +31 20 6070 490
info@wolterskluwer.com

www.wolterskluwer.com

Amsterdam Chamber of Commerce
Trade Registry No. 33.202.517

INVESTOR RELATIONS )

Oya Yavuz, Vice President Investor Relations -
T +31 20 6070 407

F +31 20 6070 499

ir@wolterskluwer.com

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

Peter Elbers, Vice President Corporate Communications
T +31 20 6070 335

F +31720 6070 450

press@wolterskluwer.com

STICHTING ADMINISTRATIEKANTOOR WOLTERS KLUWER4

(WOLTERS KLUWER TRUST OFFICE)

/o N.V. Algemeen Nederlands Trustkantoor ANT
Herengracht 420

PO. Box 11063

NL 1001 GB Amsterdam

The Netherlands

trustoffice@wolterskluwer.com

AUDITOR

KPMG Accountants nv

Burgemeester Rijnderslaan 20, Amstelveen
P.O. Box 74500

NL 1070 DB Amsterdam

The Netherlands
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